IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN THE MATTER OF THE
GUARDIANSHIP OF THE PERSON Case No. 81799 _ _
AND ESTATE OF KATHLEEN JUNE Electronically Filed

JONES, AN ADULT PROTECTED May 05 2021 05:50 p.m.
PERSON Elizabeth A. Brown

Clerk of Supreme Court

KATHLEEN JUNE JONES,

Appellant,
VS.
Appeal from the Eighth Judicial
ROBYN FRIEDMAN; AND DONNA District Court, the Honorable Linda
SIMMONS, Marquis Presiding
Respondents.

RESPONDENTS’ APPENDIX, VOLUME 5
(Nos. 488-635)

John P. Michaelson, Esq. Micah S. Echols, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 7822 Nevada Bar No. 8437
MICHAELSON & ASSOCIATES, LTD. CLAGGETT & SYKES LAW FIRM
2200 Paseo Verde Parkway, Suite 160 4101 Meadows Lane, Suite 100

Henderson, Nevada 89052 Las Vegas, Nevada 89107

Telephone: (702) 731-2333 Telephone: (702) 655-2346
Facsimile: (702) 731-2337 Facsimile: (702) 655-3763

john@Michaelsonlaw.com micah@claggettlaw.com

Attorneys for Respondents, Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons
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Steven D. Grierson
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JEFFREY P. LUSZECK, ESQ., Bar No. 09619
jluszeck@sdfnvlaw.com

ROSS E. EVANS, ESQ., Bar No. 11374
revans@sdfnvlaw.com

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.
9060 West Cheyenne Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89129

Telephone: (702) 853-5483

Facsimile: (702) 853-5485

Attorneys for Kimberly Jones
DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
IN THE MATTER OF THE Case No.: G-19-052263-A
GUARDIANSHIP OF THE PERSON AND Dept.: B
ESTATE OF:
KATHLEEN JUNE JONES NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER
An Adult Protected Person.

OTEMPORARY GUARDIANSHIP XIGENERAL GUARDIANSHIP

[ Person O Person

[ Estate O Estate  LSummary Admin.

[ Person and Estate [XIPerson and Estate
OSPECIAL GUARDIANSHIP ONOTICES/SAFEGUARDS

[Person O Blocked Account Required

OEstate  OSummary Admin. O Bond Required

OPerson and Estate

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that an Order from October 15, 2019 Hearing was entered in
the above-entitled matter on the 25" day of November, 2019, a true and correct copy of which is

attached hereto.

DATED this 25" day of November, 2019.
SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.
Jeffirey P. Luszeck

y:
JEFFREY P. LUSZECK, ESQ. (#9619)
ROSS E. EVANS, ESQ. (#11374)
9060 West Cheyenne Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89129

Attorneys for Kimberly Jones
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| HEREBY CERTIFY that on this 25" day of November, 2019, pursuant to NRCP 5(b), |

caused a true and correct copy of the foregoing NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER, to be

served to the following in the manner set forth below:

Via:

ELLLL

Hand Delivery

U.S. Mail, Postage Prepaid
Certified Mail, Receipt No.:
Return Receipt Request
E-Service through Wiznet

Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons:
John P. Michaelson, Esq.
MICHAELSON & ASSOCIATES, LTD.
john@michaelsonlaw.com

Kathleen Jones, Adult Protected Person:

Maria L. Parra Sandoval, Esq.

LEGAL AID CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA, INC.
mparra@]lacsn.org

Rodney Gerald Yeoman:
Ty E. Kehoe, Esq.
KEHOE & ASSOCIATES
TyKehoe@gmail.com

Matthew C. Piccolo
PICCOLO LAW OFFICES
matt@piccololawoffices.com

Kimberly Jones
Geraldine Tomich, Esg.

James A. Beckstrom, Esq.

MARQUIS AURBACH & COFFING
gtomich@maclaw.com
jbeckstrom@maclaw.com

s/ Gretta McCall

An employee of SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.
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Steven D. Grierson

CLERi OF THE COUR!

ORDR

JEFFREY P. LUSZECK, ESQ., Bar No. 09619
Jjluszeck@sdfnvliaw.com

ROSS E. EVANS, ESQ., Bar No. 11374
revans{@sdinviaw.com

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.
9060 Wesi Cheyenne Avenue

l.as Vegas, Nevada 89129

Telephone: {702) 853-5483

Facsimile: (702) 853-5485

Attorneys for Respondent Kimberly Jones
DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA
IN THE MATTER OF THE Case No.: G-19-052263-A
GUARDIANSHIP OF THE PERSON AND Dept.: B

ESTATE OF:

KATHLEEN JUNE JONES
Date of Hearing: October 15, 2019
An Adult Protected Person. Time of Hearing: 9:00 a.m.

ORDER FROM OCTOBER 15, 2019 HEARING

OTEMPORARY GUARDIANSHIP MGENERAL GUARDIANSHIP

O Person O Person

0] Estate O Estate  Summary Admin.

O Person and Estate T Person and Estate
OSPECIAL GUARDIANSHIP UNOTICES/SAFEGUARDS

OPerson 0 Blocked Account Required

OEstate  OSummary Admin. 0 Bond Required

OPerson and Estate
This matter having come on for hearing before the above entitled Court on Gctober 15,
2019. Present at the hearing were: Jeffrey P. Luszeck, Esq. of the law firm of Solomon Dwiggins
& Freer, Ltd. on behalf of Kimberly Jones; Marta L. Parra-Sandoval, Esq. of Legal Aid Center of
Southermn Nevada, on behalf of Kathleen June Jones, Protected Person: Ty E. Kehoe, Esq. of the
law firm Kehoe & Associates, and Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq. of the law firm Piccolo Law Offices,
on behalf of Rodney Gerald Yeoman; and John P. Michaelson, Esq. of the law firm Michaelson
& Associates, Ltd., on behalf of Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons (collectively, the
“Parties™). After considering the papers and pleadings on file herein and the argument of counsel
HECEIVED
10f5 SR B
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at the time of hearing and good cause appearing, the Court finds as follows:

1. That on December 27, 2005, Kathleen June Junes executed a Healthcare Power of
Attorney naming her daughter, Kimberly Jones, as her Attomey-in-Fact for healthcare decisions.

2. That on October 24, 2012, Kathleen June Jones executed a Financial Power of
Attorney naming her daughter, Kimberly Jones, as her Attorney-in-Fact for financial matters.

3, That on November 23, 2012, Kathleen June Jones executed a Last Will and
Testament naming her daughter, Kimberly Jones, as her Personal Representative and chosen
guardian over her person and estate, should the need for a guardian ever arise.

4, That on September 19, 2019, Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons filed their Ex
Parte Petition for Appointment of Temporary Guardian of the Person and Estate and Issuance of
Letters of Temporary Guardianship, and Petition for Appointment of General Guardian of the
Person and Lstate and Issuance of Letters of General Guardianship (“Ex Parte Petition for
Temporary Guardianship™).

5. That on September 19, 2019, the Clerk of the Court issued a Citation to Appear and
Show Cause scheduling a hearing for October 15, 2019 to “show cause, if any, why Kathleen June
Jones (“Protected Person™), should not be declared incapacitated or in need of a guardian to manage
the Protected Person’s personal and financial affairs and to further show cause, if any, why Robyn
I'riedman and Donna Simmons, should not be appointed to act as Guardian of the protected person’s
Person and Estate.”

o. That on September 23, 2019, this Court entered its Order Granting Ex Parfe Petition
for Tempaorary Guardianship wherein it appointed Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons as
Temporary Guardians. On October 3, 2019, this Court extended the temporary guardianship.

7. That on October 2, 2019, Rodney Gerald Yeoman, the husband of Kathleen June
Jones, filed his Opposition to Appointment of Temporary Guardian and General Guardian and
Counter-Petition for Appointment of Temporary Guardian of the Person and Estate and Jssuance of
Letters of Temporary Guardianship and Estate and Issuance of Letters of Temporary Guardianship

and Counter-Petition for Appointment of General Guardian of the Person and Estate and Issuance

2o0f5
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of Letters of General Guardianship (“Rodney’s Counter-Petition™).

8. That on October 2, 2019, Kimberly Jones filed her Opposition to Ex Parte Petition
for Appointment of Temporary and General Guardian of the Person and Estate; Alternatively,
Counter-Petition for Appointment of Kimberly Jones as Temporary and General Guardian of the
Person and Estate (“Kimberly’s Counter-Petition™).

9. That on October 15, 2019 at the Citation to Appear and Show Cause Hearing,
Kathleen June Jones, by and through her Court appointed Counsel, Maria I.. Parra-Sandoval,
advised the Court that it was Kathleen June Jones’ desire that Kimberly Jones be appointed as her
client’s guardian,

Good Cause Appearing Therefore,

I'TISHEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Kimberly Jones’ Counter-
Petition is hereby GRANTED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Kimberly Jones is
hereby appointed as guardian of the Estate and Person of Kathleen June Jones and Letters of General
Guardianship shall issue to Kimberly Jones.

[T IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Rodney Gerald
Yeoman’s Counter-Petition is hereby DENIED in its entirety.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the Letters of Temporary
Guardianship entered on September 23, 2019 are bereby revoked.

IT I8 FURTHER ORDERED, ADIUDGED AND DECREED that the Clerk of the Court is
bereby directed to issue Letters of Guardianship to Kimberly Jones upon subscribing to the
appropriate oath of office, and bond be waived, since there are no liquid assets.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Kimberly Jones shall
investigate the facts and circumstances regarding the purported transfer of real property located at
6277 Kraft Avenue, Las Vegas, Nevada 89130, APN 138-02-511-076, from June Jones to Richard
& Kandi Powell en or around January 16, 2018, and pursue any potential ¢laims and/or resolution

relating to the same.

Jofs
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Kimberly Jones shall
disseminate the medical records and/or information relating to Kathleen June Jones to Robyn
Friedman, Donna Simmons and Rodney Gerald Yeoman.

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Rodney Gerald Yeoman
shall be allowed to patticipate in visits with Kathleen June Jones, however, because Rodney Gerald
Yeoman was unwilling to provide any information regarding his health/medical conditions said
visits must be supervised hy Kimberly Jones and/or an agent of her choosing so as to ensure the
safety of Kathleen June Jones.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the Court approve
payment of attorneys’ fees and costs from the guardianship estate to the law firm of Solomon
Dwiggins & Freer, Ltd. at the conclusion of the guardianship proceeding, subject to Court
confirmation,

[T IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that a return hearing on the
Investigative Reports is herehy scheduled for January 14, 2020, and if necessary, an evidentiary

hearing on the Investigative Reports is scheduled for February 20, 2020.
A 4 H

. fo i ;- FITE L :
DATED this « N day of ;v S5l 2019,

;

DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
LIMOA MARGLES

Submitted by: Approved as to Form and an-teﬁﬂ;

R &

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD. LEGAL AID CENTER OF SOUTHERN

) : NEVADS, .
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By: PR ATEETN By: " upp A g A A
JEFFB"EY,P. LUSZECK, ESQ. MARIA L. PARRA SANDOVAL, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 09619 Nevada Bar No. 13736
ROSS E, EVANS, ESQ. 725 E, Charleston Blvd,

Nevada Bar No. 11374 Las Vegas, NV 89104
9060 West Cheyenne Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89129 Attorney for Kathicen Jones, Protected Person
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones
4o0f5
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TY E'KEHOE, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 6011
871 Coronado Center Dr. Ste, 200
Henderson, NV 89052

Artorney for Rodney Gerald Yeoman

Approved as to Form and Content:

MICHAELSON & ASSOCIATES, LTD.
Y
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By:

JOHN P. MICHAELSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 7822

2200 Paseo Verde Parkway, Suite 160
Henderson, NV 89052

Atiorneys for Robyn Friedman and Donna
Simmons
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Approved as to Form and Content:

KEHOE & ASSOCIATES

I3
4

By:

TY E. KEHOE, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 6011

871 Coronado Center Dr. Ste. 200
Henderson, NV 89052

Attorney for Rodney Gerald Yeoman

Approved as to Form and Content:

MICHAELSON & ASSOCIATES, LTD.

By:

JOHN P. MICHALLSON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 7822

2200 Pasco Verde Parkway, Suife 160
Henderson, NV 85052

Attorneys for Robyn Friedman and Donna
Simmans
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Electronically Filed
11/27/2019 12:55 PM
Steven D. Grierson

LERK OF THE COURT
LETT &""‘ '

JEFFREY P. LUSZECK, ESQ., Bar No. 09619
jluszeck@sdfnvlaw.com

ROSS E. EVANS, ESQ., Bar No. 11374
revans@sdfnviaw.com

SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD.
9060 West Cheyenne Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 86129

Telephone: (702) 853-5483

Facsimile: (702) 853-5485

Attorneys for Kimberly Jones

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
IN THE MATTER OF THE Case No.: G-19-052263-A
GUARDIANSHIP OF THE PERSON AND Dept.: B
ESTATE OF:

KATHLEEN JUNE JONES LETTERS OF GUARDIANSHIP

An Adult Protected Person.

OTEMPORARY GUARDIANSHIP = MGENERAL GUARDIANSHIP

[ Person " [ Person

[J Estate [0 Estate  OSummary Admin.

[1 Person and Estate 1 Person and Estate
OSPECIAL GUARDIANSHIP ONOTICES/SAFEGUARDS

OPerson O Blocked Account Required

OEstate  USummary Admin. O Bond Required

OOPerson and Estate

On the 25th day of November, 2019, a Court Order was eutered appointing KIMBERLY
JONES as Guardian of the Persen and Estate of KATHLEEN JUNE JONES, an Adult Protected
Person. The named Guardian, having duly qualified, is authorized to act and has authority to
perform the duties of such Guardian as provided by law.

In testimony of which, I have this date sigried these Letiers of Guardianship and affixed

the Seal of the Court.

STEVEM D. GRIERSON

DATED t}u&j day of November, 2019,

Deputy Court Clerk

Pof2
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I, KIMBERLY JONES residing at 18543 Yorba Linda Blvd., #146, Yorba Linda, CA
92866, whose mailing address is 18543 Yorba Linda Blvd., #146, Yorba Linda, CA 92866,
solemnly affirm that [ will faithfully perform the duties of Guardian according to law. 1 affirm
that any matiers stated in any petition, document or court proceeding are true of my own
knowledge or if any matters are stated on information or belief, I believe them to be true. I affirm
I will follow the Protected Person’s Bill of Rights to the greatest extent possible.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the law of the State of Nevada that the foregoing
is true and correct.

EXECUTED this 26 day of November, 2019.

KIMBERLYQ()NES

STATE OF NEVADA )
Js8:
COUNTY OF CLARK )

Signed and sworn to before me on this -26“‘ day of November, 2019 by KIMBERLY

R ALEXANDRA CARNIVAL ‘[/\“.
B\ Notary Public, Stato of Nevada NOTARY PUBLIC, in and for said

No. 15-1861.1 State and County
My Appt. Exp. June 4, 2023

JONES.
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KEHOE & ASSOCIATES

TY E. KEHOE, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 006011

871 Coronado Center Drive, Suite 200
Henderson, Nevada 89052

Telephone: (702) 837-1908

Facsimile: (702) 837-1932
TyKehoeLaw@gmail.com

Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14331
PICCOLO LAW OFFICES
8565 S Eastern Ave Ste 150
Las Vegas, NV 89123

Tel: (702) 749-3699

Fax: (702) 944-6630
matt@piccololawoffices.com

Attorneys for Rodney Gerald Yeoman

Electronically Filed
12/6/2019 12:59 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLER@ OF THE COUEE

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of the Guardianship of the
Person and Estate of

KATHLEEN JUNE JONES,

Proposed Protected Person.

Case No: G-19-052263-A
Dept. No.: B

Hearing: December 10, 2019, 9:30 a.m.

OPPOSITION TO PETITION FOR RETURN OF PROPERTY OF PROTECTED

PERSON

[ ] TEMPORARY GUARDIANSHIP
[ ] Person
[ 1 Estate [ ] Special Guardianship
[ ] Person and Estate

[ X] GENERAL GUARDIANSHIP
[ ] Person
[ 1 Estate [ ] Special Guardianship
[ X] Person and Estate

[ ] SPECIAL GUARDIANSHIP
[ ] Person
[ 1 Estate [ ] Special Guardianship
[ ] Person and Estate

[ ] NOTICES / SAFEGUARDS
[ 1 Blocked Account Required
[ 1 Bond Required
[ ] Public Guardian’s Bond

Rodney Gerald Yeoman (“Gerry”), husband of the Protected Person Kathleen June Jones

(“June”), by and through his counsel Ty E. Kehoe, Esq. and Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq., submits

this Opposition to Petition for Return of Property of Protected Person.

Page 1 of 6

Case Number: G-19-052263-A
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Gerry and His Daughter Dispute the Facts Alleged in the Petition.

Niki and Charlie belong to Gerry just as much or more as they do to June. The dogs lived
with Gerry and June together for more than eight years, and Gerry has been the dogs’ primary
caretaker. The dogs have resided with Gerry away from the Kraft House since May 2019, and
June is currently unable to care for the dogs.

Robyn and Kimberly state that Nikki was a birthday gift to their mother and that Charlie
was a gift that spawned from Nikki and another dog; however, Gerry has never heard anyone say
the dogs were a gift to June or that they belong only to June. (See Ex. 1, Decl. Rodney “Gerry”
Yeoman, { 5). In addition, Niki was born on September 30, 2010, (see Ex. 3, Medical Documents,
pp. 2-3, 8), and Gerry and June went to pick up Niki together about six to eight weeks after she
was born (see Ex. 1, § 5). Thus, it is highly unlikely that June received Niki as a gift for her
birthday because her birthday is January 20 (see id.)—about fifteen weeks after Niki was born.
In addition, the Petitioner has not presented any evidence that the daughters paid for the dogs or
that they were gifted exclusively to June and not also to her husband Gerry. It certainly would
not be common to give a gift to only one spouse in a married couple and exclude the other spouse
from ownership.

Robyn and Kimberly state that Nikki and Charlie have always lived exclusively at the
Kraft home, but the dogs have lived at Gerry’s current residence (not Dick Powell’s) since May.
(See Ex. 1, 1 8). Before June was taken from Gerry, they lived together at Gerry’s current
residence with the dogs. (See id.). After June was taken, the dogs continued to live with Gerry
where he continued to care for them. (See id.). The only time when Niki and Charlie stayed with
June at the Kraft House was when Gerry went to Phoenix for treatments for about two weeks.
(Seeid. 19).

When Gerry returned from Phoenix, he went to pick up the dogs and June and Kim

Page 2 of 6
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returned the dogs to Gerry without any hesitation. (See id.  10). Unfortunately, Gerry discovered
that June and Kim had not groomed the dogs and that Niki was underweight. (See id.). Gerry
believes that neither June nor Kim is able to care for the dogs because of June’s poor health and
because Kim is not aware of the dogs’ needs. (See id.).

Not until this Petition has June’s guardian demanded that Gerry return the dogs to the
Kraft House. In fact, in a letter from Kimberly’s counsel to Gerry’s counsel on November 22,
2019, Kimberly’s counsel requested any remaining property of June that Gerry might have in his
possession, but the letter said nothing about the dogs. (See Ex. 4, Letters to Counsel). Further,
counsel for Robyn and Donna sent almost an identical letter to Gerry’s counsel on September 26,
2019 when they were June’s temporary guardians, and that letter also did not mention Niki and
Charlie. (See id.). No evidence supports the Petitioner’s assertions that the dogs belong
exclusively to June or that they have lived exclusively at the Kraft House.
Gerry Has Been the Dogs’ Primary Care Taker and They Are His Constant Companion.

Ever since June and Gerry took the dogs into their marital home, Gerry has been the dogs’
primary care taker, including feeding, bathing, going to the groomer or vet, walking them, and
playing with them. (See Ex. 1, 1 6-7; Ex. 2, Decl. Jeri Ann Evans Scherer, 11 4-5.) Whenever
Gerry and June went to visit Jeri Ann (Gerry’s daughter) in California, it was Gerry who cared
for the dogs. (See EX. 2, 1 6). Indeed, the dogs’ medical records show that medical providers have
recognized Gerry as either the owner or co-owner of the dogs since their birth. (See Ex. 3). They
show that he has taken them to the veterinarian for check-ups, vaccinations, and medical
procedures and that he has registered them with chips. (See id.).

Note that contrary to the allegation in the Petition (see Petition page 4, line 5) neither

declaration provided by the Petitioner states that June has cared for the dogs or that she has taken

! Note that Gerry’s name is on each document either by himself or with June’s name.

Page 3 of 6
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them to the veterinarian or done the things that Gerry has done to care for them. There is also no
indication that June is currently able to care for the dogs, given that she is wheelchair bound and
apparently lacks mental capacity. Further, Kimberly has not indicated that she has any ability or
desire to care for the dogs as well as Gerry does.

Although June may certainly feel affection for the dogs, they have been Gerry’s constant
companions because he has done so much to care for them. (See Ex. 2, 1 4). Gerry is dealing with
cancer and the dogs have helped him with his recovery by providing him love and comfort, so
much that they give him the will to go on. (See Ex. 1, 11 2-3; Ex. 2, { 7). As Gerry and his daughter
state, since Gerry’s wife has been taken from him without the dogs Gerry’s life would be empty
and his will to live would be jeopardized. (See Ex. 1, 1 12; Ex. 2, { 8). As Jeri Ann states, these
proceedings have already caused Gerry to lose his wife, and the Court should take compassion
on his wish to keep his companions. (See Ex. 2, 11 9-10).

Niki and Charlie Were Joint Gifts to the Marital Community and Gerry Has an Equal
Right to Their Ongoing Companionship, if Not a Greater Right Because He Has Been Their
primary Caregiver.

Gerry disputes the dogs were given solely to June for her birthday and argues they are the
married couple’s community property. Even if the dogs were given specifically to June, they have
become community property of the married couple as Gerry has been their primary caregiver and
developed the strongest relationship with them. In Nevada, a gift to one spouse can transmute
into community property. Schmanski v. Schmanski, 115 Nev. 247, 250-51, 984 P.2d 752, 755
(1999). This transmutation can occur through the intermingling of separate and community
property, see Lucini v. Lucini, 97 Nev. 213, 215, 626 P.2d 269, 271 (1981); Ormachea V.
Ormachea, 67 Nev. 273, 297, 217 P.2d 355, 367 (1950), or when both parties have unrestricted

use of the property for their mutual benefit, see In re Marriage of Schriner, 88 Ill. App. 3d 380,
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384, 410 N.E.2d 572, 574 (1980).

Here, both June and Gerry have had unrestricted access to the dogs, and Gerry has
contributed thousands of hours to caring for them. The couple has also contributed community
funds to providing for the dogs. Even if the dogs were gifted to June initially, which Gerry
disputes, June has gifted the dogs to the community by asking, or allowing, Gerry to care for them
and by paying for their needs with community funds. Alternatively, the dogs have transmuted
into community property through Gerry’s contributions to the dogs’ well-being. Either way,
Gerry has a legal right to keep the dogs with him, especially given that his relationship with Niki
and Charlie is stronger and he is able to care for them as he has done for years and is doing now.

Gerry has been willing to discuss options regarding the dogs, and Gerry’s Counsel has
offered to discuss the same with Petitioner’s Counsel; however, no response has been received.
Ideally Gerry, June, Niki and Charlie would all be living together, without Kimberly and her
boyfriend, as Gerry has sought from the beginning of this guardianship.

The Court Should Deny the Petition or, as an Alternative, Conduct an Evidentiary Hearing
to Determine Who Should Have the Dogs.

The Court should deny the Petition because of Gerry’s extensive relationship with the
dogs and his current medical condition. In the alternative, the Court should conduct an evidentiary
hearing to determine precisely how the dogs became part of June and Gerry’s marital home and
who has cared for them since then. At a minimum, the Court must allow the Parties to produce
and examine witnesses before considering taking the dogs from Gerry, as NRS 159.305(2)
requires. Indeed, NRS 159.305(1) seems to require the Court to “cause the person to be cited to
appear before the district court to answer, upon oath, upon the matter of the petition.”

At this point, insufficient evidence exists to take the dogs from Gerry given the witness
statements and documents Gerry has produced. The Court has not cited Gerry to appear and no

witnesses have been examined. To avoid violating Gerry’s statutory rights to due process, the

Page 5 of 6

502




© 00 N o o B~ w N

NN N N N NN NN B R R R R R R R R
0 N o 00 B W N B O © 0 N oo o~ W N Rk o

Court should allow witnesses to testify under oath and allow for other appropriate discovery

before depriving Gerry of his property without a formal proceeding.

Conclusion

Gerry respectfully asks the Court to deny the Petition or, in the alternative, to hold an

evidentiary hearing under NRS 159.305 to determine what course of action is appropriate.

Dated this 6 day of December, 2019.

KEHOE & ASSOCIATES

/sl Ty E. Kehoe

Ty E. Kehoe, Esq.
Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq.
PICCOLO LAW OFFICES

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| HEREBY CERTIFY that on the 6" day of December, 2019, | served a true and correct

copy of the OPPOSITION TO PETITION FOR RETURN OF PROPERTY OF PROTECTED

PERSON via electronic service to the following, or via US First Class Mail postage pre-paid to

the addresses listed:

Jeffrey P. Luszeck, Esq.
Ross E. Evans, Esq.
jluszeck@sdfnvlaw.com
revans@sdfnvliaw.com
Counsel for Kimberly Jones

Maria L. Parra-Sandoval, Esq.

Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada, Inc.

mparra@Iacsn.org

Counsel for June Jones

John P. Michaelson, Esqg.
john@michaelsonlaw.com

Counsel for Robyn Friedman and Donna
Simmons

Geraldine Tomich, Esq.
gtomich@maclaw.com
James A. Beckstom, Esq.
jbeckstrom@maclaw.com
Counsel for Kimberly Jones

/sl Ty E. Kehoe
Ty E. Kehoe
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My name is Rodney Yeoman
1 have been diagnosed with Terminal Cancer and at this time undergoing Chemo Therapy.

The last 6 months have been difficult, having Nikiand Charlie with me helps duringmy recovery. They give me love
& comfort. They provide me each day with the will to go on.

We walk each day multiple times, this help me with my strengthening exercises. We aiso go to the dog park and
play ball each day.

Niki was born in September 2010 and June and | picked her up when she was about 6 to 8 weeks old. | never
heard anyone say that Niki was a birthday gift for June, her birthday is in January. No one said Niki and Charlie
were gifts to June or only June’s. June wanted a dog and we went together to pick up Niki.

When Charlie was born, my understanding was that Charlie belonged to me and June. | have always believed
Niki and Charlie were mine and June’s because we got them together and it was me who provided for their
care.

| have always provided the care for Nikiand Charlie, whatever it may be. Feeding, Bathing, going to the groomer or
vetetc.

In May, June and { moved to the house next to Dick and Kandi temporarily and took Niki and Charlie with us.
The dogs have been living there with me since May.

The only time Niki and Charlie were with June at the Kraft House was for about two weeks in September or
QOctober when | was in Phoenix for treatments. The other times | have gone to Phoenix the dogs stayed with my
daughter where { am living,

When | got back from Phoenix, | went to pick up Niki and Charlie and June and Kim didn't hesitate to give them
back. The dogs were not groomed and Niki was underweight. | had to take them to the groomer. | don’t think
June is able to care for Niki and Charlie because of her health, and | don’t think Kim knows what they need for
food, shots, grooming etc.

Piease consider my request to keep my companions Niki and Charlie.
If | did not have them in my life, it would be empty.

THEY are the JOY of my life now that my wife has been taken from me.

| declare under the penalty of perjury in the State of Nevada that the above is true and correct.

Rodney Yeoman /7,1‘,&2\,417 ) M WM
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Az my cliests heve been granted temporsry guandienghip of June Jones, | write to ask that your
clients peovide any of the following items in thuir possession 1o Ms. Jones:

i, Any personal propesty belonping to Ma. Jones that (s currently u the possession of anner Cerry
Yeoouman or the Powell's. This would inclode itesna st the Powel regidenca as well a5 anytning

that may be in Arizona. My cliests specifizelly request that all ciothing items beloaging to Mas.
Jonos be retumed to her.

2. Axy medicstions proscribed for June Jorcs remaining in the possession of either Mr. Yeoman
or the Powell's,

. Any information that Gemy Yeoman or the Powell's may have about vpooming doctor
appo.ntments for June Jones: eve docior, heart doctor, dementis cors, themgpy, genel practitioner,
or any other medice] sppointments thas Mr. Yeomun or the Powell's are aware of

4 Any information regarding the daily caze of Junc Jones: medications taken and schedule for
sarne, dhet rentrictinns, diet prefecences daily schodule, sctivities, rehab exercises 1o be perfrmad,
5. Ma. Jones" wallet, identifieation, insurance casds,

. Ma. Jones' phone and charges.

7. Vinancial information: bank sccomnt infnrmation, pazswords, bills ‘o be pald and sccount
menbers for same. Information regarding location of safe deposit box(es) and keys for zame,

8. Personal suppiics: specinl kygiene itrms, medical dovices, watkor/wheeichalr,

9, Any oiher items belonging to Ms. Jones of sy other information or e that woulid be helpfil
‘n providing ‘o ber care.

10, Accounting of any debis [hat Dick believes June Jones' rsinte may owe him as well o8
between Dick and Ms. Jones™ sgent for funds that were or sre to be reimbursed (o Dnck Srom Ma
Jomes" estate,

11, Information regurding all entornsys that have been contacted on bekalf of June Jones, rs well
85 an accounting of miy isgal fecs puid from the cslate of June Jones or that will be “iiled tn thn
estate of June Joriea
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My clients elso requent (cformation on Mr. Yeomsen's szt and his infentors megurding Ma.
Jenes 1s Mr. Yeoman still in Arizoza? [T o, is there a schedulod defe for his retum o Lan Vogas?
Whe= Mr. Yeorsms retams to Las Vegn, ¥ i his iniettion (o resnze |iving with Ms. Jones? 1o
aempring © formtoe a iong-turm care plax for Ma. Jones, my clients nead 1o koow what, if any,
volvemens Mr, Yeoman plans 1o have in Ma. Jones' éauy Kz and what bis neslth status will
ailow with regard jo samw

Tt tae interest of feeping wf interestesd Tomily membem nvolved mnd informed, my clients have
st up Google docaments fur the following:

Dwily Celender

Dially or Weekly Jourmal

Diocturs, herapieaModicetios

Lim of Avtety

Legzal Updates

If Mr. Yeomaz wouls Hke to have access @0 the above documaerts, be will seed to provide an emui!
acdress so i my clivnts can zend Sim an invitetion 1o view the documments. Also, Ms. Joges has
en email aZdress that will be motriented daily. 1 Mr. Yooram wishas (o rend crmalls aud/or protices
to Ma Jopca, ey will be resd and shown fo hes rogulady The pddress s
kath senjroejones@E gl .com.

1 helicve our clients und your clients beve o [east one goal in commion, wiich i ‘o provide the
st care and most stabis Hving sitution for Ma. Jones &8 sesmiossly as posthle. We e hopefl
that all will cooperuie to do -vnat 18 seaded to eseure that she recedves s high level of owrs. Ty
cliemts ave in possession of any of (he ebove, ploase contict me by noon of Fridiy, Septomber 27,
2019 to srrange [o tremsi

Siretrcly,

o0 P Sicltr—

P. Michanison, Eaq.
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TRUST AND ESTATE AlTORNEYS

Cheyenne Wast Professional Cenfré
2040 West Cheyenne Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89129

Mark A. Solomon
Dana A. Dwiggins Jordanna L. Evans
Alan D. Freer Ronnle T. Goodwin
Brian K. Steadman Joshug M. Hood
steven E. Hollingworth Telephone; (702) 853-5483 Croig D. Friedel
8rian P. Eagan Facsimile:  (702] 853-5485 Tess E. lohnsan
feffroy P Luszeck Ronalkd T, Goodwin
Alexander G. lLeVeque Jacob D. Crawley

Roberto M. Campos

Ross E, Evans

Direct Dial: (702} 587-3511
Email: Jluszeck@sdinviaw.com

November 22, 2019

VIA EMAILL: {vk
Ty Kehoe, Hsq.
871 Coronado Cenier Dr., Sic. 200
Ilenderson, NV 89052

sl (o

Re:  Guardianship of Kathleen “June” Jones
Case No. G-19-052263-A

Decar Ty,

As you are aware my client, Kimberly Jones, has becn granted pguardianship of Kathleen
Jones (“June™), T am hereby requesling that your clients provide any and all of the following
ilems in their possession to June ¢/o Kimberly Jones.

1. Any personal property belonpging to fune that is currently in the possession of
either Rodney Gerald Yeoman (“Gerry”) or Richard and Kandi Powell {the “Powells™). This
would include items at the Powells” residence as well as anything that may be in Arizona. My
client specifically requests that all clothing items belonging to June be returned to her.

2. Any medications prescribed for June remaining in the possession of either Gerry
or the Powells,

3. Any information regarding the daily care of June, ez, medications taken and
schedule for same, diet restrictions, diet preferences, daily schedule, activities, rehab exercises to

be performed.

4, June’s wallet, identification, insurance cards.

R AR SDFLAW@SDFNVLAW.COM | #ES SDENVLAW,.COM
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5. June’s phone and charger.

6. Financial information, e,g., bank account information, passwords, bills to be paid
and account numbers for same. Information regarding location of safe deposit box(es) and keys
for same,

7. Personal supplies, e g, special hygiene items, medical devices, walker/
wheelchair,
3. Any other items belonging to June or any other information or items that would

be helplul in providing for her care.

9. Accounting ol any debts that the Powells belicve June’s cstate may owe him as
well as supporting documentation for any such claims. Documentation should include written
agreements hetween the Powells and June’s agent for [unds that were or arc to be reimbursed o
the Powells from June’s esiate.

10. Information regarding all atlorneys that have been contacied on behall of June, as
well as an accounting of any legal fees paid from June’s estate or that will be billed to the June’s
cstate,

My client also requests information on Gerry’s status and his intentions regarding June.
Is Mr. Yeoman still in Arizona? If so, is there a scheduled date for his return to Las Vegas?
When Gerry returns to Las Vegas, is it his intention to resume living with June? In attempting to
formulate a long-term care plan for June, my client needs to know what, if any, involvement
Gerry plans to have in June's daily life and what his health status will allow with regard to same.

I believe my client and your chients have at least one goal in common, which is (o provide
the best care and most stable living situation for June as seamlessly as possible. We are hopelul
that all will cooperate to do what is nceded to ensurc that she reecives a high level of care. If
your clients are in possession of any of the above, please contact me by noon on Wednesday,
November 27, 2019, (o arrange for transfer.

Sincerely,
A 1 ‘

Jelfrey P. Luszeck
JPL:ggm

EAASH SDFLAW@SDINVLAW . COM | WER SDFNVIAW.COM
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KEHOE & ASSOCIATES

TY E. KEHOE, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 006011

871 Coronado Center Drive, Suite 200
Henderson, Nevada 89052

Telephone: (702) 837-1908

Facsimile: (702) 837-1932
TyKehoeLaw@gmail.com

Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14331
PICCOLO LAW OFFICES
8565 S Eastern Ave Ste 150
Las Vegas, NV 89123

Tel: (702) 749-3699

Fax: (702) 944-6630
matt@piccololawoffices.com

Attorneys for Rodney Gerald Yeoman

Electronically Filed
12/6/2019 1:17 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLER@ OF THE COUEE

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of the Guardianship of the
Person and Estate of

KATHLEEN JUNE JONES,

Proposed Protected Person.

Case No: G-19-052263-A
Dept. No.: B

Hearing: December 10, 2019, 9:30 a.m.

OPPOSITION TO PETITION FOR CONFIRMATION TO BRING CIVIL ACTIONS ON

BEHALF OF KATHLEEN JUNE JONES

[ ] TEMPORARY GUARDIANSHIP
[ ] Person
[ 1 Estate [ ] Special Guardianship
[ ] Person and Estate

[ X] GENERAL GUARDIANSHIP
[ ] Person
[ 1 Estate [ ] Special Guardianship
[ X] Person and Estate

[ ] SPECIAL GUARDIANSHIP
[ ] Person
[ 1 Estate [ ] Special Guardianship
[ ] Person and Estate

[ ] NOTICES / SAFEGUARDS
[ 1 Blocked Account Required
[ 1 Bond Required
[ ] Public Guardian’s Bond

Rodney Gerald Yeoman (“Gerry”), husband of the Protected Person Kathleen June Jones

(“June”), by and through his counsel Ty E. Kehoe, Esq. and Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq., submits

this Opposition to Petition for Confirmation to Bring Civil Actions on behalf of June.

Page 1 of 3
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Filing A Civil Action at This Time Would Be Premature and, Thus, Waste the Resources of|
the Courts and the Parties.

Gerry is not opposed to the Court granting the Petition per se, if the Court believes a civil
suit is in June’s best interest.! Gerry is not opposed because he has no reason to believe he has
done anything to harm his wife June and welcomes any investigation into June’s financial
situation. Indeed, Gerry did everything he could to care for June while they were living together
(as a married couple should), and Gerry and June enjoyed nine happy of years of marriage
(including full support of June’s children) until these guardianship proceedings essentially
destroyed their marriage, which is clearly not in June’s interest, or Gerry’s.

Gerry is opposed to the Petition simply because it is premature. The Court has ordered an
investigation into June’s financial situation, which must be completed by January 14, 2020.
Allowing the Guardian to file a civil lawsuit regarding June’s financial status now would create
a duplicate investigation into the same issues that could result in the unnecessary loss of many
hours and thousands of dollars in attorney’s fees and other expenses for the parties involved.

Instead, the Court should wait to receive the report from the Compliance Officer to
determine whether a civil lawsuit is even necessary. Indeed, after investigation the Compliance
Officer may determine that nothing inappropriate has happened involving June’s finances and
that civil litigation is entirely unnecessary. At this point, June’s children have not submitted any
actual evidence of wrongdoing. This Court has not had an opportunity to hear testimony and
review pertinent documents. There have simply been bare allegations made which Gerry disputes.
Thus, forcing the Parties to litigate these issues prematurely would be a distraction and waste of

time and money for everyone involved.

! Gerry obviously disputes many of the factual allegations in the Petition; however, it does not appear necessary to
dispute the same in the context of this Opposition.

Page 2 of 3
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If after the Compliance Officer’s report, the Court still believes civil litigation is
appropriate then the Court can permit the same at that time.

Conclusion

Gerry respectfully asks the Court to deny the Petition at this time to allow the Court-
ordered investigation to be completed.

Dated this 6™ day of December, 2019. KEHOE & ASSOCIATES

/sl Ty E. Kehoe

Ty E. Kehoe, Esq.
Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq.
PICCOLO LAW OFFICES

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| HEREBY CERTIFY that on the 6" day of December, 2019, | served a true and correct
copy of the OPPOSITION TO PETITION FOR CONFIRMATION TO BRING CIVIL
ACTIONS ON BEHALF OF KATHLEEN JUNE JONES via electronic service to the following,
or via US First Class Mail postage pre-paid to the addresses listed:
Jeffrey P. Luszeck, Esq. John P. Michaelson, Esq.
Ross E. Evans, Esq. john@michaelsonlaw.com

jluszeck@sdfnvlaw.com
revans@sdfnvlaw.com

Counsel for Kimberly Jones Counsel for Robyn Friedman and Donna
Simmons

Maria L. Parra-Sandoval, Esq. Geraldine Tomich, Esq.

Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada, Inc. gtomich@maclaw.com

mparra@Iacsn.org James A. Beckstom, Esq.
jbeckstrom@maclaw.com

Counsel for June Jones Counsel for Kimberly Jones

/s/ Ty E. Kehoe
Ty E. Kehoe
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Electronically Filed
12/9/2019 1:34 PM
Steven D. Grierson

Marquis Aurbach Coffing CLERK.OF THE cou&
Geraldine Tomich, Esq. .
Nevada Bar No. 8369
James A. Beckstrom, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 382-0711
Facsimile: (702) 382-5816
gtomich@maclaw.com
jbeckstrom@maclaw.com
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones,
Guardian of Kathleen June Jones

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

IN THE MATTER OF THE GUARDIANSHIP

OF THE PERSON AND ESTATE OF: Case No.: G-19-052263-A
Dept. No.: B
KATHLEEN JUNE JONES Hearing Date: December 10, 2019

Hearing Time: 9:30 a.m.
An Adult Protected Person.

REPLY IN SUPPORT OF PETITION FOR RETURN OF
PROPERTY OF PROTECTED PERSON

O TEMPORARY GUARDIANSHIP Xl GENERAL GUARDIANSHIP

O Person O Person
O Estate [ ] Estate [ ] Summary Admin.
O Person and Estate X] Person and Estate
O SPECIAL GUARDIANSHIP O NOTICES/SAFEGUARDS
O Person O Blocked Account Required
O Estate O Summary Admin. O Bond Required

O Person and Estate

Kimberly Jones, by and through her counsel of record, James A. Beckstrom, Esq. of the
law firm of Marquis Aurbach Coffing, hereby files her Reply in Support of Petition for Return of
Property of Protected Person.

Page 1 of 14
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MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING
10001 Park Run Drive

© 00 ~N oo o b~ wWw N

N R D RN NN NN DN P PR R R R R R R
©® ~N o o b~ W N P O © O N oo o~ w N » O

This Reply is made and based upon all papers, pleadings, and records on file herein, the
attached Memorandum of Points and Authorities, and any oral argument allowed at a hearing on
this matter.

Dated this 9th day of December, 2019.

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By _ /s/ James A. Beckstrom
Geraldine Tomich, Esg.
Nevada Bar No. 8369
James A. Beckstrom, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones, Guardian
of Kathleen June Jones

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I. INTRODUCTION

Property rights vest at the time of acquisition. This legal premise has stood the test of time.
A person’s property rights, whether real or personal are not subject to change simply because a
third party covets the property of another, places their name on property, or believes they are a
better suited owner of the property. Indeed, the only relevant question of law when deciding
ownership of property is who acquired the property and how.

This legal tenant of law can best be described not with dogs, which while personal property,
are often emotionally charged—»but through the example of a piano. If a party is gifted a piano as
separate property, the piano is the receiving party’s separate property. It doesn’t matter if the
receiving party doesn’t like the piano, doesn’t take the best care of the piano, or allows others to
play the piano. The character of the piano will always be separate property under the law. This
does not change, even if a third party who loves the beloved piano attempts to register the piano
in their name, pays to maintain the piano, and believes the piano is their own. While certain

circumstances may allow such a third party to assert an equitable claim for monetary

Page 2 of 14
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reimbursement— no remedy under the law allows a party to transmute ownership of the personal
property.

Here, Gerry’s entire opposition is identical to the example of the less emotional example
above involving the piano. Clear and convincing evidence shows June was gifted a dog named
Nikki for her birthday from her children. The evidence also shows June’s children paid for Nikki.
No evidence shows community funds were utilized to purchase Nikki. Notwithstanding, Gerry
asserts that because he has placed his name on Nikki (microchipping Nikki to himself), provided
care to Nikki (vet records), “believes” Nikki was half his, and enjoys the company of Nikki—that
Nikki is therefore his. This of course is incorrect.

Gerry overlooks the only issue relevant to this Court—were community funds used to
purchase the dogs or were the dogs a gift to June. A careful review of Gerry’s Opposition reveals
that nothing has been provided to suggest the dogs were purchased with community funds or that
Nikki was not a gift. Consequently, the return of the dogs to June is necessary to protect the
property rights of the protected person.

II. STATEMENT OF FACTS

A. THE DISPOSITIVE FACTS REMAIN UNDISPUTED.

1. In or around November 2010, June’s children, Robyn Friedman (“Robyn”) and
Kimberly Jones (“Kimberly™), began looking for breeders of Shih-Tzu puppies in anticipation of
June’s upcoming birthday. In doing so, a breeder named Jeri Patrick (*Jeri”’) was located. Jeri
provided Robyn pictures of available Shih-Tzu puppies.t Emails between Jeri Patrick and Robyn
confirm this occurred in November 2010.2

2. Upon locating Jeri, a Shih-Tzu puppy (Nikki) was purchased by Robyn’s husband,
Perry Friedman (“Perry””) on November 18, 2019.3

! Declaration of Robyn Friedman, attached as Exhibit 1.

2 See November 4, 2010 E-mail between Robyn and Jeri Patrick concerning puppies, attached as Exhibit
5.

% Declaration of Perry Friedman, Exhibit 2; PayPal receipt of purchase, attached at Exhibit 6.

Page 3 of 14

MAC:15820-001 12/9/2019 1:19 PM

531




Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
(702) 382-0711 FAX: (702) 382-5816

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING
10001 Park Run Drive

© 00 ~N oo o b~ wWw N

N R D RN NN NN DN P PR R R R R R R
©® ~N o o b~ W N P O © O N oo o~ w N » O

3. The purchase price of Nikki was made via Paypal by Perry in two separate
payments, a deposit in the amount of $200 and a final payment in the amount of $550.*

4, Nikki was purchased months before June’s birthday, because Jeri Patrick had
available puppies at that time.>

5. As of December 8, 2019, Jeri Patrick confirmed Perry purchased Nikki and the
purchase was conveyed to her at that time as gift for June.®

6. In or around 2014, Nikki June’s son Scott Simmons (*“Scott””) mated Nikki with one
of his daughter’s Shih-Tzu dogs, which produced Charlie. After Charlie was born, Scott gave him
to June as a gift.’

7. June, nor anyone else paid for Charlie.®

8. From the time Nikki and Charlie were gifted to June until approximately October
2019, Nikki and Charlie lived exclusively with June and her husband Gerry at the Kraft Avenue
home.® 10

9. After June’s children learned the Kraft Avenue property was transferred from June
to Gerry’s son, Dick for more than $100,000 less than fair market value, Kimberly began

requesting information from Dick in or around August 2019.1

4 Exhibit 2.

5 Exhibit 1; Declaration of Kimberly Jones, attached as Exhibit 3.

® See December 8, 2019 E-Mail from Jeri Patrick to Perry Friedman, attached as Exhibit 8.

" Declaration of Scott Simmons, attached as Exhibit 4.

81d.

% Exhibit 3.

10 Proof of the dogs living at the Kraft Avenue property with June can be seen in the care notes from June’s
in-home assistants, which note the dogs were at the property, See October 1, 2019 Notes of Senior Helpers,

attached as Exhibit 7.

1d.
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10.  Thereafter, out of courtesy, Kimberly was taking Nikki and Charlie back and forth
to Gerry’s residence when Gerry would see June.*?

11. In or around October 2019, Kimberly took June, Nikki, and Charlie to visit her
husband Gerry.** When it was time to leave, Gerry made clear he was not going to give the dogs
back to June.** Thus, October 6, 2019 was the first time Gerry refused to return the dogs to June
and Gerry has continues to wrongfully retain the dogs.'®

12. Both Nikki and Charlie were at the Kraft Avenue property with June on October 1,
2019, which is confirmed by records regularly kept by June’s guardian.®

13. Prior to and during June’s battle with cognitive impairment, June has consistently
cared for Nikki and Charlie.r’

B. NONE OF GERRY’S “FACT” ARE DISPOSITVE OF OWNERSHIP.

1. Gerry has not been a “primary caretaker” of the dogs, nor is it relevant as to who
cares for the dogs—as ownership is the only relevant issue.

2. Gerry’s knowledge of how the dogs were obtained is not relevant, the only thing
relevant is if Gerry contends the dogs were purchased through community funds—nhe has not.

3. June is not “wheelchair bound” and in fact her favorite part of the day is walking
her dogs with the assistance of her guardian and/or home health providers.

4, It is irrelevant what actions Gerry has taken concerning the dogs post purchase,

including recently placing a microchip in the dogs in 2017.

21d.
B d.
1 1d.
5 d.
% 1d.
71d.
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III. LEGAL ARGUMENT

A. THE DOGS ARE JUNES UNDER THE LAW.

Gerry in grasping at nothing more than his opinion, overlooks the fact that the dogs are
statutorily presumed to be personal property of June and he has presented no evidence to suggest
the dogs were purchased with community funds or received as a community gift. Smith v. Smith,
94 Nev. 249, 251, 578 P.2d 319, 320 (1978) (*“our statutory scheme presumes “(a)ll property of the
husband . . . acquired by him . . . by gift, bequest, devise, . . . (to be) separate property.””. NRS
123.130 lays this out with surprising clarity and states as follows:

All property of a spouse owned by him or her before marriage, and that was

acquired by him or her afterwards by gift, bequest, devise, descent or by an award

for personal injury damages, with the rents, issues and profits thereof, is his or her

separate property.

Additionally, a spouse claiming a community property interest maintains the burden of
showing that the purchase price of the property was paid out of the community funds. See Barrett
v. Franke, 46 Nev. 170, 208 P. 435 (1922) (emphasis added). Here, Gerry’s lack of ownership in
either dog is clear based on his inability to produce anything other than some vet records where he
is listed as a contact person alongside June.'® Noticeably absent is any declaration of Gerry stating
he purchased the dogs with community funds or that June purchased the dogs with community
funds.'® Rather, Gerry carefully declares he went with June to ““pick up the dogs” but fails to state
the obvious, that neither he nor June purchased the dogs.?’ This is because the dogs were a gift to
June, as proven by clear and convincing evidence set forth by June.

Specifically, in or around November 2010, Robyn and Kimberly began looking for

breeders of Shih-Tzu puppies in anticipate of June’s upcoming birthday, wherein Jeri Patrick was

located and provided Robyn pictures of available puppies.?* Emails between Jeri and Robyn

18 Opp’n at Exhibit 3.
19 Exhibit 1.
204,

21 d.
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confirm this.?? Upon locating Jeri, a Shih-Tzu puppy (Nikki) was purchased by Perry Friedman
and Robyn on November 18, 2019.% The purchase price of Nikki was made via Paypal by Perry
in two separate payments, a deposit in the amount of $200 and a final payment in the amount of
$550.24 All of June’s children confirm that Nikki was purchased from Jeri, as a birthday gift for
June.? 26 Nikki was purchased months before June’s birthday, because it just so happened that a
local breeder had puppies available at that time.?” As for Charlie, in or around 2014, June’s son
Scott Simmons mated Nikki with one of his daughter’s Shih-Tzu dogs, which produced Charlie.
After Charlie’s was born, Scott gifted him to June.?® No evidence presented by Gerry has or can
contradict these undisputed facts demonstrating both Nikki and Charlie were gifts to June from
her children.

B. GERRY PROVIDES NO LEGAL AUTHORITY TO SUPPORT A CLAIM
OF OWNERSHIP.

The crux of Gerry’s Opposition is that he is sick, he would be sad without the dogs, and he
is a better caregiver for the dogs.? Fortunately, for June, the only protected person at issue in this
case, Gerry’s opinions nor his ill-fated attempts to create law out of thin air are of any relevance
to this very simple decision before the Court. Notwithstanding, Gerry brazenly goes so far as to

proclaim that because he has wrongfully withheld June’s dogs from her, he is somehow the defacto

22 See Exhibit 5.

28 Exhibit 2.

24 1d.

2 d.

2 This purchase as a gift for June was also confirmed by the dog breeder. See Exhibit 8.
21 Exhibit 1; Exhibit 3.

28 Exhibit 4.

29 Opp’n at Exhibit 1.
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owner and should remain the owner until the conclusion of an evidentiary hearing.® This of course
is false for several reasons.

First, Gerry has failed to set forth any evidence that entitles him to an evidentiary hearing,
as Gerry has produced nothing that shows he purchased the dogs or was gifted the dogs. Rather,
clear and convincing evidence proves that June’s children procured and/ or purchased the dogs for
June.®! These facts will not change during any evidentiary hearing, as Gerry has expressed no
opinion or facts to suggest the dogs were purchased with community funds—which is the only
relevant issue in determining ownership.

Second, without presenting any admissible evidence to support the proposition Gerry
maintains an ownership interest in the dogs, Gerry has no legal basis to continue wrongfully
withholding the dogs from June. Contrary to Gerry’s assertion, without at least making forth a
viable claim that community funds were utilized to purchase the dogs, Gerry maintains no claim
of ownership. The limited case law cited by Gerry does nothing to advance his non-existent claim
of ownership, as there is no Nevada authority suggesting personal property can be transmuted as
Gerry suggests. Rather, the authority Gerry relies on further supports the well accepted rule that
separate property does not become community property simply because a spouse wants an interest
in the property, without at minimum evidence to suggest the property at issue was obtained through
community funds.

1. Gerry Has Provided No Evidence Community Funds Were Utilized to

Purchase the Dogs and His Opinion Concerning Ownership is
Irrelevant.

For Gerry to make a claim that the dogs are community property, he must at minimum set
forth facts explaining the dogs were purchased from community funds. As he has failed to do so,
there is no basis for further hearing, nor legal support for him to retain the dogs for a minute longer.

Moreover, the Court must disregard any opinions of Gerry (or anyone else) concerning the

character of the dogs. The opinion of either spouse as to the character of the property is of no

% Opp’n at 5:8-10.

31 See Exhibits 1-3.
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moment whatsoever. Hardy v. United States, 918 F. Supp. 312, 317 (D. Nev. 1996) quoting Peters

v. Peters, 92 Nev. 687, 557 P.2d 713, 716 (1976). This proposition has existed since 1922, when

the Nevada Supreme Court in Barrett v. Franke, 46 Nev. 170, 208 P. 435, 438 (1922), stated
Whether the property was community or separate, was a question of law,

depending on the manner and time of its acquisition. The opinion of Pepper [the
husband] on this legal question was entitled to no weight.

Because characterization of personal property is an issue of law, the Court need only
review the only evidence in front of it concerning the funds used to purchase the dogs and the
gifting of the dogs. Gerry’s opinion is irrelevant to this issue.

2. Gerry Has No Legal Authority to Continue to Withhold the Dogs
from June.

Gerry’s Opposition is heavy on sympathy but devoid of legal authority supporting the relief
he seeks—which appears to be keeping the dogs permanently or until an evidentiary hearing takes
place. None of the authority provided by Gerry lends support to the idea that June’s dogs could be
community property, nor that Gerry has the authority to retain these dogs for a minute longer.
Indeed, when the cases Gerry cites in his Opposition are reviewed, it becomes more apparent that
Gerry’s argument is premised entirely on his irrelevant opinion of ownership.

Grasping at straws, Gerry attempts to argue that the dogs have been “transmuted” from
personal property to property of the community, whereby he maintains a 50% ownership interest.
In support of this argument, Gerry cites four cases, one which is from Illinois. The cases broken
down in turn unequivocally demonstrate Gerry’s created basis of transmutation is simply wrong.

First, Gerry relies on Schmanski v. Schmanski, 115 Nev. 247, 250, 984 P.2d 752, 755
(1999). In Schmanski, the issue before the court was whether a husband’s original gifts of stock
(separate property) were transformed into community property. The Court found that the plain

language of NRS 125.150 does not support a determination that separate property placed into

32 Opp’n at pgs. 4-5; Exhibit 1.
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joint tenancy is irrevocably transmuted into community property.® Id. (Emphasis added.) Thus,
should the Court want to venture into Schmanski, the road is short and in clear favor of June.

Next, Gerry cites Lucini v. Lucini, 97 Nev. 213, 215, 626 P.2d 269, 271 (1981), which
lends no support to any argument relevant to this case. Lucini is a case in which the trial court
traced funds in a divorce and determined certain accounts to be separate property of a husband. Id.
On appeal, the wife challenged the district court’s ruling, arguing that the commingling of the
community and separate property bank accounts was so extensive, the husband’s separate property
was transmuted to community property.>* The Nevada Supreme Court, again contrary to Gerry’s
position affirmed the district court’s decision.

Notwithstanding the fact that Lucini lends no support to Gerry’s argument, the facts in
Lucini are of no comparison to that of the dogs at issue. Dogs, like other non-monetary personal
property (e.g. a piano) are not capable of “commingling.” In arguing to the contrary, Gerry asserts
that if someone spends time with someone else’s property (e.g. a piano), likes the other person’s
property, and cares for the property “more than the owner”— ownership can transmute. This is a
proposition in which no court has accepted, because it is a ludicrous.

The last case cited by Gerry is In re Marriage of Schriner, 410 N.E.2d 572, 574 (1980), an
Illinois case of no relevance to the dogs at issue. In Schriner, a husband prior to marriage purchased
a bedroom set for him and his very soon to be wife to use. Id. The set was purchased by him 3
days prior to marriage. Id. The trial court concluded that the bedroom set was a gift purchased by
the husband in contemplation of marriage with the intent to be used jointly and therefore became

martial property. Id.

¥ Moreover, each case cited by Gerry deal with transmutation of real property through title transfers or the
commingling or funds.

3 The court cited the same proposition in Ormachea v. Ormachea, 67 Nev. 273, 217 P.2d 355
(1950), which was also copied by Gerry. The holding in Ormachea is of no relevance to the case
S0 it is omitted.
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Here, Gerry does not contend he purchased either dog. Rather, he rambles on about how
he feels the dogs are his with absolutely no legal basis to do so. Misplaced emotion is not the law
and Gerry has made no showing to suggest either dog is community property. None of Gerry’s
cases provide the Court with the well-known rule of law that a transmutation of separate to
community property requires an express declaration of intent form the adversely affected party.
Estate of Bibb, 87 Cal.App.4th 461, 463, 104 Cal.Rptr.2d 415 (2001) (“transmutation is not valid
‘unless made in writing by an express declaration that is made ... by the spouse whose interest in

the property is adversely affected.””). This declaration if intent has only been found in instances
of title transfers, extensive commingling and use of financial funds, and written agreements. See
id.
More important, Gerry makes no case to justify an evidentiary hearing, as he has failed to
set forth what facts he would seek to elicit at an evidentiary hearing to suggest he could make a
plausible claim of ownership to the dogs. Gerry admits he never paid for the dogs and his opinion
as to whether he was an owner of not is not admissible evidence to prove ownership. Consequently,
as Gerry maintains no authority to suggest the dogs can be transmuted to community property and
has set forth no evidence that community funds were utilized to purchase the dogs, no legal basis
exists to withhold the dogs from June for a minute longer.
C. NO BASIS FOR AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING EXISTS AS THIS COURT
IS EMPOWERED AND ENCOURAGED TO CONSERVE RESOURCES
IN GUARDIANSHIP PROCEEDINGS.
As described in detail below, NRS 159.305 does not require an evidentiary hearing and
Gerry admits this. The entirety of NRS 159.305 states as follows:

NRS 159.305 Petition alleging that person disposed of money of protected
person or has evidence of interest of protected person in or to property.

1. If a guardian, interested person, protected person or proposed protected
person petitions the court upon oath alleging:

(a) That a person has or is suspected to have concealed, converted to his or her
own use, conveyed away or otherwise disposed of any money, good, chattel or
effect of the protected person; or

(b) That the person has in his or her possession or knowledge any deed,
conveyance, bond, contract or other writing which contains evidence of, or tends to
disclose the right, title or interest of the protected person or proposed protected
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person in or to, any real or personal property, or any claim or demand, the judge

may cause the person to be cited to appear before the district court to answer, upon

oath, upon the matter of the petition.

The Court can see that there is no requirement for an evidentiary hearing, and it is not
necessary for testimony to be received, rather it is discretionary. See id. Here, as stated below ad
nausea, Gerry has submitted nothing more than argument to claim an interest in June’s separate
property and June has provided admissible evidence demonstrating by clear and convincing
evidence the dogs were not purchased with community funds. As such, there is no basis for an
evidentiary hearing, as there are no conflicting disputes of material fact at issue for this Court to
receive.

D. IN THE ALTERNATIVE, SHOULD THE COURT FIND IT NECESSARY,

THE DOGS SHOULD BE SPLIT, AWARDING JUNE NIKKI AND GERRY
CHARLIE.

The evidence presented on behalf of the only protected person for this court to worry about
demonstrates by clear and convincing evidence that Nikki was purchased by Perry and Robyn
Friedman and gifted to June.® The evidence also demonstrates that Charlie was similarly gifted to
June by Scott from his litter of dogs.®® To the contrary, Gerry has provided absolutely no
documents or testimony to suggest the either Nikki or Charlie were purchased from community
funds. Notwithstanding, should the Court buy into Gerry’s underhanded tactics and now clear
pattern of abusing his cognitively impaired wife, the Court should at minimum order the immediate
return of Nikki to June. In doing so, Gerry would retain possession of Charlie until a hearing or
the guardianship investigation concludes. This is nowhere near the right decision, but at minimum
June has presented clear and convincing (admissible) evidence that Nikki is her separate property.

Moreover, because Gerry only claims a “community interest” in the dogs, there is no

equitable argument to suggest the dogs should not be returned to June until the Court can make a

final decision on this issue. It is undisputed that Gerry has retained the dogs for months, keeping

35 Exhibits 1 and 2.

% Exhibit 4.

Page 12 of 14
MAC:15820-001 12/9/2019 1:19 PM

540




Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
(702) 382-0711 FAX: (702) 382-5816

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING
10001 Park Run Drive

© 00 ~N oo o b~ wWw N

N R D RN NN NN DN P PR R R R R R R
©® ~N o o b~ W N P O © O N oo o~ w N » O

them away from June. During the pendency of this issue, equity and good cause supports returning
the dogs to June until the Court makes its final decision as to ownership.

IV.  CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing, June has set forth by clear and convincing evidence both Nikki
and Charlie are her sperate property. In response, Gerry has provided nothing more than opinion
and conjecture that transcends the laws of Nevada. The dogs must be ordered returned

immediately.®
Dated this 9th day of December, 2019.

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By __ /s/ James A. Beckstrom
Geraldine Tomich, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 8369
James A. Beckstrom, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones, Guardian
of Kathleen June Jones

37 In ordering the return of the dogs, the Court must also order Jerry to change the microchip registration
back to June or provide Kimberly access to do so by a date certain.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that the foregoing REPLY IN SUPPORT OF PETITION FOR

RETURN OF PROPERTY OF PROTECTED PERSON was submitted electronically for filing

and/or service with the Eighth Judicial District Court on the 9" day of December, 2019. Electronic
service of the foregoing document shall be made in accordance with the E-Service List as
follows:3®

Ty E. Kehoe, Esq.
KEHOE & ASSOCIATES
871 Coronado Center Drive, Ste. 200
Henderson, NV 89052
Email: tykehoelaw@gmail.com

Matthew C. Piccolo, Esqg.
PICCOLO LAW OFFICES
2450 St. Rose Pkwy., Ste. 210
Henderson, NV 89074
Email: matt@piccololawoffices.com

Jeffrery P. Luszeck, Esq.
SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD
9060 West Cheyenne Avenue

Las Vegas, NV 89129
jluszeck@sdfnlaw.com

I further certify that | served a copy of this document by mailing a true and correct copy
thereof, postage prepaid, addressed to:

N/A

[s/ Cally Hatfield
An employee of Marquis Aurbach Coffing

% Pursuant to EDCR 8.05(a), each party who submits an E-Filed document through the E-Filing System
consents to electronic service in accordance with NRCP 5(b)(2)(D).
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DECLARATION OF ROBYN FRIEDMAN

Robyn Friedman, declares as follows:

1. I am over the age of 18 years and have personal knowledge of the facts stated
herein, except for those stated upon information and belief, and as to those, I believe them to be
true. I am competent to testify as to the facts stated herein in a court of law and will so testify if
called upon.

2. In or around November 2010, my sister Kimberly Jones (“Kimberly”) and I (with
the assistance of my husband Perry Friedman) began looking for breeders of Shih-Tzu puppies in
anticipation of my mother’s birthday. In doing so, I located a breeder named Jeri Patrick whom I
exchanged e-mails with concerning the purchase of a puppy. A true and accurate email between
myself and Jeri Patrick is displayed in Exhibit 5 to the reply brief filed in support of the Motion
for Return of Property.

3. Upon locating Jeri Patrick, a Shih-Tzu puppy (Nikki) was purchased by Perry and
I on November 18, 2019.

4. The purchase price of Nikki was made via PayPal by Perry in two separate
payments, a deposit in the amount of $200 and a final payment in the amount of $550. I asked
Perry to help me make this payment and a true and correct PayPal receipt is displayed at Exhibit

6 to the reply brief filed in support of the Motion for Return of Property.

5. Nikki was given to my mother as her birthday gift as a collective gift from my
siblings and I.
6. I have communicated with Jeri Patrick to inquire as to whether she retained

additional records surrounding the purchase of Nikki and while she no longer has these records,
Jeri confirmed Nikki was sold to me as a gift for my mother. Exhibit 8 to the Reply in Support of
Motion for Return of Property is a true and accurate copy of the e-mail correspondence dated
December 7, 2019 from Jeri.

7. In or around 2014, my brother Scott Simmons (“Scott”) mated Nikki with one of
his daughter’s Shih-Tzu dogs, which produced Charlie. When Charlie was born, Scott gave him to

June as a gift.
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8. No one other than Perry and I paid for Nikki.

9. From the time Nikki and Charlie were obtained by my mother until approximately
October 2019, Nikki and Charlie lived exclusively with her and her husband Gerry at the Kraft
Avenue home.

10.  After we learned the Kraft Avenue property was transferred from June to Gerry’s
son, Dick for more than $100,000 less than fair market value, Kimberly and I began requesting
information from Dick in or around August 2019.

11.  After the request for information in August 2019, October 4, 2019 was the last time
Nikki or Charlie were delivered back to the Kraft Avenue property, as Gerry has refused to return
the dogs following a visit with the dogs.

Pursuant to NRS § 53.045, I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of
Nevada that the foregoing is true and correct.

Dated this 8th day of December 2019.

e

Robyn Friedman
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DECLARATION OF PERRY FRIEDMAN

Perry Friedman, declares as follows:

1. I am over the age of 18 years and have personal knowledge of the facts stated
herein, except for those stated upon information and belief, and as to those, I believe them to be
true. I am competent to testify as to the facts stated herein in a court of law and will so testify if
called upon.

2. In or around November 2010, my wife Robyn Friedman and I (along with my
wife’s siblings) began looking for breeders of Shih-Tzu puppies in anticipation of her mother’s
birthday. In doing so, we located a breeder named Jeri Patrick.

3. Upon locating Jeri Patrick, a Shih-Tzu puppy (Nikki) was purchased by me on
November 18, 2019.

4. The purchase price of Nikki was made via PayPal by me in two separate
payments, a deposit in the amount of $200 and a final payment in the amount of $550. A true and
correct PayPal receipt is displayed at Exhibit 6 to the reply brief filed in support of the Motion
for Return of Property.

5. Nikki was given to June Jones as a birthday gift, collectively from my family and
Robyn’s siblings.

6. I was the only person who paid for Nikki.

Pursuant to NRS § 53.045, I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State
of Nevada that the foregoing is true and correct.

Dated this 8th day of December 2019.

/L

Perry Friedman

Page 1 of 1
MAC: Document5 12/9/2019
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DECLARATION OF KIMBERLY JONES

1. I am over the age of 18 and if called to testify under oath am prepared to do so.

2. I am the guardian of the person and estate of Kathleen June Jones (“June”™).

3. Pursuant to NRS 159.305 I affirm under penalty of perjury that Gerald and/or
Richard have and continue to wrongfully be in possession of my mother’s personal property,
which includes her two dogs, Nikki and Charlie.

4. In or around November 2010, my sister Robyn Friedman and I (with the
assistance of Robyn’s husband Perry Friedman) began looking for breeders of Shih-Tzu puppies
in anticipation of my mother’s birthday. In doing so, we located a breeder named Jeri Patrick.

5. Upon locating Jeri Patrick, a Shih-Tzu puppy (Nikki) was purchased by Perry and
Robyn on November 18, 2019, I was in regular communication with both Perry and Robyn
during this time.

6. The purchase price of Nikki was made via PayPal by Perry in two separate
payments, a deposit in the amount of $200 and a final payment in the amount of $550.

7. Nikki was given to my mother as her birthday gift as a collective gift from myself
and my siblings.

8. Nikki was purchased months before my mother’s birthday, due to breeding
regulations that do not allow for simultaneous payment and procurement.

9. In or around 2014, my brother Scott Simmons (“Scott””) mated Nikki with one of
his daughter’s Shih-Tzu dogs, which produced Charlie. After Charlie was born, Scott gave
Charlie to June as a gift.

10.  No one other than Perry and Robyn paid for Nikki.

11.  From the time Nikki and Charlie were obtained by my mother until approximately
October 2019, Nikki and Charlie lived exclusively with her and her husband Gerald at the Kraft

Avenue home.
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12. In early October, I brought my mother along with Nikki and Charlie to visit
Gerald at the residence of Richard Powell.

13. When it was time for my mother to leave to return home, Gerald with the
assistance and support of Richard Powell refused to turn over Nikki and Charlie to my mother.

14. I have demanded the return of Nikki and Charlie to no avail.

15. My mother asks where Nikki and Charlie are multiple times a day and has
suffered increased bouts of sadness without her dogs.

16.  Nikki and Charlie have always lived exclusively at my mother’s home on Kraft
Avenue.

17. I have personal knowledge that Nikki and Charlie remain at the residence of
Richard Powell and/or Gerald Yeoman.

18. I have not provided Richard Powell, nor Gerald Yeoman permission to retain

possession of Nikki or Charlie.

Pursuant to NRS § 53.045, I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of
Nevada that the foregoing is true and correct.

Dated this 8th day of December 2019.

/s/ Kimberly Jones

Kimberly Jones
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DECLARATION OF SCOTT SIMMONS

1. I am over the age of 18 and if called to testify under oath am prepared to do so.

2. I am the son of June Jones and have personal knowledge as to each of the below
stated statements.

3. In or around 2010, a Shih-Tzu puppy (now named Nikki) was purchased by my
siblings for my mother, June Jones.

4. Nikki was given to my mother as her birthday gift as a collective gift from her
children.

5. In or around 2014, I mated Nikki with one of my daughter’s Shih-Tzu dogs,
which produced a dog now named Charlie.

6. After Charlie was born, I gave gifted him to my mother June.

7. I did not give Charlie to my mother’s then husband Gerry.

8. No one paid me for Charlie, or any portion of the breeding process concerning

Charlie.

Pursuant to NRS § 53.045, I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State
of Nevada that the foregoing is true and correct.

Dated this 8th day of December 2019.

DAMT Deinindrd.

Scott Simmons
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From: Robyn Jones <vgsfun@hotmail.com>

Sent: Thursday, November 4, 2010 7:23:16 PM

To: kimberlysjones@hotmail.com <kimberlysjones@hotmail.com>
Subject: RE: Tiny RARE solid white AKC little girl Chinese Imperial Shih TZU

Call that person...I'm a little suspicious that they are only $600. Double check that they are real AKC full pure bred. Call
them now!

Alos, these dogs are really small like 6 pounds. That's why they are called Imperials or "minis". Make sure Mom wants
one that is that little. The normal shih tzus are exactly like Sugar was, 9 pounds. The AKC "breed" is actually 9-14

pounds.

- Robyn
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Date: Sun, 7 Nov 2010 14:54:38 -0800
From: stildreaming@sbcglobal.net
To: vgsfun@hotmail.com

Subject: Female Shih-Tzu

Female Shih-Tzu pictures

www.patrickslil-paws.com

Jeri Patrick
775-751-5458
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—————————— Forwarded message ---------
From: service@paypal.com <service@paypal.com>

Date:” A
Subject: Your payment has been sent
To: | <friedman@cs.stanford.edu>

Hello Perry Friedman,

It may take a few moments for this transaction to appear in the Recent Activity list on your Account
Overview.

Payment details
Amount: $550.00 USD

Transaction Date: November 18, 2010
Transaction ID: 5LU90247YM 1947006

Message:

Shipping Address:
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1315 Enchanted River Dr

Henderson, NV 89012

United States

View the details of this transaction online

This payment was sent using your credit card.

For your future payments, try using Instant Transfer instead!
- Pay instantly and securely

- Faster than paying with checks

- Pay directly from your bank account - purchases won't show up on bills at the end of the month.

Sincerely,
PayPal

Your monthly account statement is available anytime; just log in to your account at
https://www.paypal.com/us/cgi-bin/webscr?cmd=_history. To correct any errors, please contact us
through our Help Center at https://www.paypal.com/us/cgi-bin/webscr?cmd=_contact us.

Please do not reply to this email. This mailbox is not monitored and you will not receive a response.
For assistance, log in to your PayPal account and click the Help link in the top right corner of any
PayPal page.

To receive email notifications in plain text instead of HTML, update your preferences.

PayPal Email ID PP118
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---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: service@paypal.com <service@paypal.com>
Date: 5:04 PM

Subject: Your payment has been sent

To: Perry Friedman <friedman@cs.stanford.edu>

it.

It may take a few moments for this transaction to appear in the Recent Activity list on your Account
Overview.

Payment details
Transaction Date: November 7, 2010
Transaction ID: 9J4603822E711301B

St

Message:
This is a deposit for an Imperial Shitzu for June Jones.

Shipping Address:

1315 Enchanted River Dr
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Henderson, NV 89012
United States
View the details of this transaction online

This payment was sent using your credit card.

For your future payments, try using Instant Transfer instead!
- Pay instantly and securely

- Faster than paying with checks

- Pay directly from your bank account - purchases won't show up on bills at the end of the month.

Sincerely,
PayPal

Your monthly account statement is available anytime; just log in to your account at
https://www.paypal.com/us/cgi-bin/webscr?cmd=_history. To correct any errors, please contact us
through our Help Center at https://www.paypal.com/us/cgi-bin/webscr?cmd=_contact us.

Please do not reply to this email. This mailbox is not monitored and you will not receive a response.
For assistance, log in to your PayPal account and click the Help link in the top right corner of any
PayPal page.

To receive email notifications in plain text instead of HTML, update your preferences.

PayPal Email ID PP118
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From: Jeff Conrado <JConrado@seniorhelpers.com>
Sent: Thursday, 43 AM

To: Robyn Friedman <vgsfun@hotmail.com>
Subject: RE: Grocery List

Thank you for the information. Steve will be dropping off the gift card this morning.

SENIOR Jeff Conrado

H I . Quality of Services Coordinator

e pers Senior Helpers

Office: 702-802-4511 | Fax: 702-802-4512

Email: jconrado@seniorhelpers.com | seniorhelpers.com/LasVegas

5560 South Fort Apache Rd Suite 110, Las Vegas, NV 89148

€O

p @ @ o=@ TRUSTED PROVIDER

From: Robyn Friedman <vgsfun@hotmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, September 25,2019 5:36 PM
To: Jeff Conrado <JConrado@seniorhelpers.com>
Subject: Grocery List

I'll bring the print out of the meal options in the morning.to be kept and to make figuring meals out easier on the care
providers. This will get us through 8 days and beyond a little. Care provider that is here now will be here tomorrow and

1
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we sort of outback the list together while asking my mom and off of what | know she likes. She will need the gift card to
shop with. Does Steve have it still?

Shopping List:

Dry food bag -

Bottled water (any brand - 24 pack for mom’s bedside)

2 cucumbers

2 tomatoes

6 bananas

Green grapes

2 peaches

2 green apples

1 packs of microwave bacon

6 frozen meals - higher end nice ones, some with shrimp,
1 package of bow tie pasta

1 can of Alfredo sauce

2 cheese flavored microwave rice

2 chicken flavored microwave rice

Plain cream cheese container

Large cottage cheese container

Large package of turkey meat

Container of mayonnaise

Package of frozen breakfast sandwiches

Breakfast burrito package

Fresh roasted chicken

Head of lettuce

Plastic single serve Cesar salad

Frozen family sized lasagna

Frozen family sized beef stroganoff (or other is no stroganoff)
Gourmet mac and cheese (add water and microwave kind)
2 prepackaged Cesar’s salads (with meat if possible)
Chocolate ice cream (gallon)

Gloves

Laundry pods - Tide

8 Days of Meal Options:
(should be kept in Senior Helpers folder for helpers/mom to choose from so it’s easier than staring in the cupboards)

Breakfast:

Breakfast sandwich
Breakfast burrito

Bagels cream cheese

Any of the above with fruit

Lunch:

Turkey sandwich - mayo, lettuce, turkey

Caesars salads

Frozen meal option

Gourmet mac and cheese

Slices of tomato or cucumber on the side optimal
Cottage cheese on the side optimal
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Dinner:

Lasagna

Stroganoff

Rice and chicken breast

Spaghetti with Alfredo sauce, chicken breast
Frozen meal options
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From: Perry Friedman <friedman@cs.stanford.edu>
Sent: Sunday, December 8, 2019 6:51:39 PM

To: Robyn Friedman <vgsfun@hotmail.com>
Subject: Fwd: Your payment has been sent

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Jeri&Bryon <stildreaming@sbcglobal.net>
Date: Sun, Dec 8, 2019 at 5:30 PM

Subject: Re: Your payment has been sent

To: Perry Friedman <friedman@cs.stanford.edu>

Hi,

I'm sorry I haven't been able to find anything for you on the female ( Nikki ) Imperial Shih-Tzu. I sold to you as
a family gift to your Mother-in-laws... It probably was on my old computer that crashed on me.... So sorry wish
I could of been more help to you and June.. I hope thing will go well for your family in court...

Best wished

Jeri Patrick
On Saturday, December 7, 2019, 12:53:34 AM PST, Perry Friedman <friedman@cs.stanford.edu> wrote:

Hello,

My name is Perry Friedman. My mother-in-law's name is June Jones. We purchased a puppy from you for my mother-in-
law in 2010 as her precious shih tzu had sadly just passed away. My mother-in-law and her husband at the time went out
to pick the puppy up. My mother-in-law was very healthy then. Since that time, she has spent the last few years fighting
dementia. Her dog Nikki has given her immense amounts of comfort and has been well cared for by her and my sister-in-
law, Kim, my mother-in-law's guardian. My mother-in-law and her husband have been living apart after he began being
investigated on suspicion of elder abuse against her. During a recent visit, Nikki was taken by mother-in-law's husband
and he won't give her back, claiming she is “their” dog. Note that Nikki was a gift from my mother-in-law’s kids to her for
her birthday - which is the actual case. We are going to court Tuesday to try to get Nikki back. | found your email address

1
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from the PayPal receipt back in 2010 when we bought the new puppy. If there’s any chance you could please check your
records to see if you have any documentation of the purchase (including any emails, etc.), that would be very helpful. |
know it’'s rushed, but we are just at our wits end trying to keep my mom from being further abused and losing her dog who
has been since a wonderful companion to her all of these years.

Thank you in advance for any help you may be able to give.

Perry Friedman
760-809-5576

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: service@paypal.com <service@paypal.com>
Date: Sun, Nov 7, 2010 at 5:04 PM

Subject: Your payment has been sent

To: Perry Friedman <friedman@cs.stanford.edu>

Hello Perry Friedman,

Your payment for $200.00 USD to stildreaming@sbcglobal.net has been sent.

It may take a few moments for this transaction to appear in the Recent Activity list on your Account
Overview.

Payment details

Amount: $200.00 USD
Transaction Date: November 7, 2010
Transaction ID: 9J4603822E711301B

Subject: Deposit from June Jones

Message:
This is a deposit for an Imperial Shitzu for June Jones.

Shipping Address:

1315 Enchanted River Dr

Henderson, NV 89012

United States

View the details of this transaction online

This payment was sent using your credit card.

For your future payments, try using Instant Transfer instead!
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- Pay instantly and securely

- Faster than paying with checks

- Pay directly from your bank account - purchases won't show up on bills at the end of the month.
Sincerely,

PayPal

Your monthly account statement is available anytime; just log in to your account at

https://www.paypal.com/us/cgi-bin/webscr?cmd=_history. To correct any errors, please contact us
through our Help Center at https://www.paypal.com/us/cgi-bin/webscr?cmd=_contact us.

Please do not reply to this email. This mailbox is not monitored and you will not receive a response.
For assistance, log in to your PayPal account and click the Help link in the top right corner of any
PayPal page.

To receive email notifications in plain text instead of HTML, update your preferences.

PayPal Email ID PP118
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Electronically Filed
12/9/2019 2:04 PM
Steven D. Grierson

Marquis Aurbach Coffing CLERK OF THE coug
Geraldine Tomich, Esq. '
Nevada Bar No. 8369
James A. Beckstrom, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 382-0711
Facsimile: (702) 382-5816
gtomich@maclaw.com
jbeckstrom@maclaw.com
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones,
Guardian of Kathleen June Jones

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

IN THE MATTER OF THE GUARDIANSHIP

OF THE PERSON AND ESTATE OF: Case No.: G-19-052263-A
Dept. No.: B
KATHLEEN JUNE JONES Hearing Date: December 10, 2019

Hearing Time: 9:30 a.m.
An Adult Protected Person.

REPLY IN SUPPORT OF PETITION FOR CONFIRMATION TO BRING CIVIL
ACTIONS ON BEHALF OF KATHLEEN JUNE JONES

O TEMPORARY GUARDIANSHIP X] GENERAL GUARDIANSHIP

O Person O Person
O Estate [ ] Estate [ | Summary Admin.
O Person and Estate X] Person and Estate
O SPECIAL GUARDIANSHIP O NOTICES/SAFEGUARDS
O Person O Blocked Account Required
O Estate OO0 Summary Admin. O Bond Required

O Person and Estate

Kimberly Jones, by and through her counsel of record, Geraldine Tomich, Esq. and James
A. Beckstrom, Esq. of the law firm of Marquis Aurbach Coffing, hereby files her Reply in Support

of Petition for Confirmation to Bring Civil Actions on Behalf of Kathleen June Jones.

Page 1 of 4
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Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
(702) 382-0711 FAX: (702) 382-5816

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING
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This Reply is made and based upon al papers, pleadings, and records on file herein, the
attached Memorandum of Points and Authorities, and any oral argument allowed at a hearing on
this matter.

Dated this 9th day of December, 2019.

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By _ /9 James A. Beckstrom
Geraldine Tomich, Esqg.
Nevada Bar No. 8369
James A. Beckstrom, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones, Guardian
of Kathleen June Jones

MEMORANDUM OF POINTSAND AUTHORITIES

l. INTRODUCTION AND ARGUMENT

Gerry has no standing to oppose a petition for confirmation to bring acivil suit against him.
Notwithstanding, Gerry doesn’t oppose the petition.t

As for Gerry’s attempt to argue or imply the Court’s investigation into June’s financial
affairs should proceed first before acivil action can be filed—this request is nothing more than an
attempt to delay the litigation that must move forward. The Court knows well that resources are
limited in guardianship investigations and the discovery in those investigations is not as broad as
what is available to private parties in litigation. Moreover, as this Court knows, the report of a
Compliance Officer, regardless of what isfound, is not aprerequisiteto filing acivil suit to protect
June’ sinterests.

Asit stands, it is Gerry and Dick who continue to wrongfully retain June’s home, money,

and property. June has a constitutional right to petition for the relief sought in the underlying draft

1 Opp'n at 2:4-10.
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complaint through her guardian Kimberly. Kimberly has set forth highly particularized facts that
demonstrate a pattern of financial abuse inflicted on June and there is no just reason to delay a
lawsuit to prove this abuse.

Lastly, this Court itself having only reviewed afraction of the documents that will become
available during discovery expressed significant concern with the fact June's largest asset—her
personal residence was transferred to Dick for $100,000 under fair market value, without the
presence of counsel, and during a time in which Kimberly was known to control June’s finances
due to Jun€'s incapacity. This fact aone justifies a civil suit where Kimberly can engage in
discovery and prove up Jun€' s damages.

. CONCLUSION

As such, the Court should grant Kimberly's petition and allow a civil suit to be brought
immediately.
Dated this 9th day of December, 2019.

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By _ /9 James A. Beckstrom
Geraldine Tomich, Esqg.
Nevada Bar No. 8369
James A. Beckstrom, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones, Guardian
of Kathleen June Jones
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| hereby certify that the foregoing REPLY IN SUPPORT OF PETITION FOR

CONFIRMATION TO BRING CIVIL ACTIONS ON BEHALF OF KATHLEEN JUNE

JONES was submitted electronically for filing and/or service with the Eighth Judicial District
Court on the 9th day of December, 2019. Electronic service of the foregoing document shall be
made in accordance with the E-Service List as follows:?

Ty E. Kehoe, Esg.
KEHOE & ASSOCIATES
871 Coronado Center Drive, Ste. 200
Henderson, NV 89052
Email: tykehoelaw@gmail.com

Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq.
PICCOLO LAW OFFICES
2450 St. Rose Pkwy., Ste. 210
Henderson, NV 89074
Email: matt@piccol olawoffices.com

Jeffrery P. Luszeck, Esg.
SOLOMON DWIGGINS & FREER, LTD
9060 West Cheyenne Avenue

LasVegas, NV 89129
jluszeck @sdfnlaw.com

| further certify that | served a copy of this document by mailing a true and correct copy
thereof, postage prepaid, addressed to:
N/A

/9 Cally Hatfield
An employee of Marquis Aurbach Coffing

2 Pursuant to EDCR 8.05(a), each party who submits an E-Filed document through the E-Filing System
consents to electronic service in accordance with NRCP 5(b)(2)(D).

Page 4 of 4

MAC:15820-001 12/9/2019 2:01 PM

Sr7




G-19-052263-A DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Guardianship of Adult COURT MINUTES December 10, 2019

G-19-052263-A In the Matter of the Guardianship of:
Kathleen Jones, Protected Person(s)

December 10, 2019 09:30 AM All Pending Motions

HEARD BY: Marquis, Linda COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 10A
COURT CLERK: Christensen, Karen; Stengel, Tanya
PARTIES PRESENT:

Robyn Friedman, Petitioner, Temporary Guardian, John P. Michaelson, Attorney, Present
Present

Kathleen June Jones, Protected Person, Not Maria L. Parra-Sandoval, Attorney, Not Present
Present

Donna Simmons, Petitioner, Temporary Guardian, John P. Michaelson, Attorney, Present
Present

Rodney Gerald Yeoman, Other, Present Matthew C. Piccolo, Attorney, Present

Ty E.Kehoe, Attorney, Present

Kimberly Jones, Guardian of Person and Estate, James A. Beckstrom, Attorney, Present
Other, Present

State Guardianship Compliance Officer, Agency,
Present

JOURNAL ENTRIES

HEARING: PETITION FOR RETURN OF PROPERTY OF PROTECTED PERSON AND PETITION
FOR CONFIRMATION TO BRING CIVIL ACTIONS ON BEHALF OF KATHLEEN June
JONES...OPPOSITION: RODNEY G. YEOMAN'S OPPOSITION TO PETITION FOR RETURN OF
PROPERTY OF PROTECTED PERSON...OPPOSITION: RODNEY GERALD YEOMAN'S
OPPOSITION TO PETITION FOR CONFIRMATION TO BRING CIVIL ACTIONS ON BEHALF OF
KATHLEEN June JONES...HEARING: REPLY IN SUPPORT OF PETITION FOR RETURN OF
PROPERTY OF PROTECTED PERSON...HEARING: REPLY IN SUPPORT OF PETITION FOR
CONFIRMATION TO BRING CIVIL ACTIONS ON BEHALF OF KATHLEEN June JONES.

COURT CLERKS: Tanya Stengel, Karen Christensen (kc)

Attorney Constantina Rentzios, Nevada Bar #13747, appeared on behalf of Protected Person and
for attorney Maria Parra-Sandoval.

Sonia Jones, Supreme Court Financial Forensic Specialist, present.
Protected Person's daughter, Donna Simmons, participated telephonically.

Mr. Beckstrom made arguments in support of dogs Nikki and Charlie being gifted to Protected
Person. The dogs are essentially chattel and they can't be divided like community property such as
real estate. The dogs have been in Mr. Yeoman's possession since October and Protected Person
requests the return of her dogs daily.

Mr. Kehoe argued both of the dogs are community property. Court noted this is a guardianship case,
not a divorce case, and the parties would typically look for an offset or credit. Mr. Kehoe advised
Protected Person treated the dogs as if they were also Mr. Yeoman's property, as he also cared for

Printed Date: 12/14/2019 Page 1 of 3 Minutes Date: December 10, 2019

Notice: Journal Entries are prepared by the courtroom clerk and are not the official record of the Court.
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G-19-052263-A

the dogs. Mr. Kehoe advised Mr. Yeoman cared for the dogs for eight years, and Protected Person
cannot currently care for the dogs. Mr. Kehoe noted errors and contradictions in the declarations
and reply brief, and requested an evidentiary hearing to resolve the matter.

Court requested Mr. Michaelson caution Ms. Friedman regarding speaking out in court.

Mr. Kehoe made statements regarding making offsets in lieu of keeping the dogs, returning them
after Mr. Yeoman's death, or having parties attend mediation. Court noted it does not have
jurisdiction over pre-estate planning.

Ms. Rentzios advised she read all the pleadings. Protected Person wants her dogs returned and
asks about them every day. Protected Person indicated to Ms. Parra-Sandoval she would be willing
to share the dogs with Mr. Yeoman if an amicable solution could be found. Ms. Rentzios advised
Nikki was a gift to Protected Person. She and Mr. Yeoman did not pay for the dog using community
funds. Court inquired whether an evidentiary hearing was needed. Ms. Rentzios stated an
evidentiary hearing was not needed. There is no clear dispute as to ownership of the dogs. An
evidentiary hearing would be a waste of Protected Person's time and resources. Ms. Rentzios
requested the return of the dogs to Protected Person.

Court and counsel engaged in further discussion regarding the ownership and gifting of the dogs,
and return of the dogs, or at least one dog to PP, until an evidentiary hearing. Court noted it would
be a likely court outcome it would accept statements of law and conclusions of law as set forth from
Petitioner's Motion and Court would expect a request for attorney fees at the evidentiary hearing.

Mr. Beckstrom requested at least one of the dogs be returned to Protected Person pending the
outcome of the evidentiary hearing. Mr. Kehoe advised he asked Mr. Yeoman regarding the matter
and Mr. Yeoman declined as the dogs have not been separated. Mr. Beckstrom noted there has
been no compromise and requested Protected Person at least have Nikki through the holidays until
evidentiary hearing. Ms. Rentzios agreed. Mr. Kehoe stated Court recognized due process has not
been accomplished. Court clarified it was trying to make a clear record to avoid appeal and further
litigation. Ms. Kehoe stated there was no reason to separate the dogs, and requested Mr. Yeoman
keep the dogs until the evidentiary hearing. Court noted the dogs have been with Mr. Yeoman for
about two months. The dogs will be returned to Protected Person by 5:00 PM tomorrow until
evidentiary hearing. Court will make a final determination at the evidentiary hearing.

Mr. Michaelson made statements regarding Mr. Yeoman's alleged elder abuse of Protected Person.
Mr. Michaelson made additional statements regarding Mr. Yeoman's microchip of the dogs, and
requested Court make an order to have the information attached to the microchip changed.
Discussion.

As to the civil action, Mr. Beckstrom advised Guardian has researched the financial records and
found a significant amount of elder abuse and intentional actions to punish Protected Person.
Visitation hasn't occurred, the dogs have been kept from Protected Person, and funds have been
removed from the account. These matters need to be brought forth in a civil suit. Mr. Beckstrom
requested Court allow the filing of a civil suit. Mr. Kehoe argued against a civil suit, in part to running
up additional fees. Mr. Kehoe argued Mr. Powell's wife has been brought into the litigation and felt it
was additional punishment to his client. Ms. Rentzios advised Protected Person is okay proceeding
with the civil litigation, however she does not want to name Mr. Yeoman in the suit. Mr. Beckstrom
confirmed he would be named in the suit to protect Protected Person's interests.

Court noted Ms. Jones was present in the courtroom. Ms. Jones stated she came to hear the facts
of the case today to gain some clarity regarding the home, funds in the account, and the time period
involved.

Mr. Kehoe made statements regarding supervised visitation with Mr. Yeoman, due to physical
constraints. Mr. Kehoe stated he provided a declaration to Guardian's former attorney. Argument
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and discussion. Court noted matter is not on calendar today and encouraged counsel to continue to
work on a resolution.

COURT ORDERED:

Both dogs, Nikki and Charlie, shall be TEMPORARILY RETURNED to Protected Person no later
than 5:00 PM tomorrow (12/13/19). Court shall make a final determination at the Evidentiary
Hearing.

Future hearings, Investigator's Report, set for 1/14/20 at 1:30 PM, and Evidentiary Hearing, set for
2/20/20 at 1:30 PM shall STAND.

Court shall allow up to thirty (30) minutes of argument and discussion regarding the dogs at the
Evidentiary Hearing. Counsel may STIPULATE to the entry of documents. Counsel shall make NO
opening statements and shall SUBMIT closing briefs regarding the issue of the dogs. Witnesses
may appear TELEPHONICALLY, with the prior filing of intent to appear telephonically.

Petition for Confirmation to Bring Civil Actions on Behalf of Protected Person shall be GRANTED.
Mr. Beckstrom shall submit an Order for Court's signature.

Counsel shall provide information as requested to Ms. Jones in order for her to adequately complete
a financial forensic investigation.

INTERIM CONDITIONS:

FUTURE HEARINGS:

Jan 14, 2020 1:30PM Return Hearing
RJC Courtroom 10A Marquis, Linda

Feb 20, 2020 1:30PM Evidentiary Hearing
Courtroom 07 Marquis, Linda
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA TUESDAY, DECEMBER 10, 2019

PR CEEDIHN 5

(THE PROCEEDINGS BEGAN AT 9:38:039)

THE COURT: This is the matter of the Guardianship
of Kathleen Jones, G-19%-052263-A. We have Donna Simmons on
the telephone wha is the daughter of the protected petrson; is
that correct?

M3, SIMMONS: Yes.

THE COURT: Counsel in the courtroom, your
appearances for the record?

MR. MICHAELSOM: John Michaelson, bar number 7822,
on behalf of the Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons.

ME. BECKSTRCM: Your Honor, James Beckstrom on
behalf of Kimberly Jones, Guardian of the protected person.

MR. KEHOE: Good merning, Your Honor. Ty Kehoe for
Jerry Yeoman, the husband of the protected person; who is alseo

present in the courtroom. The husband, not the protected

parson.

THE COURT: Good morning.

M5. SIMMONS: Good morning.

MR. PICCOLD: Matthew Piccole, co-counsel for Mr.
Yeoman.

THE COURT: Good morning, Ceounsel. This is on for a

G-18-052263-4 GUARDIANSHIP OF JONES 121018 TRANSCRIPT
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few things., I've read all the documents and we hawve some
dates coming up. This is5 a petition for return of property.
Let's take that issue up first and the property specifically
is the deogs, correct? Counsel?

MR. BECESTROM: Correct, Your Honor. It's a pretty

straightforward petition. It's for perscnal property that Ms.

June was gifted during marriage. We've provided the Court

what is undisputed clear and convincing evidence of that. The

gift was a collective gift from Jupe's children.

We've provided vyou with purchase receipts for the

cost of the dog, declarations supporting the same, and there's

no dispute here that this was a gift to June as to the first
dog.

THE COURT: Mr. Beckstrom, Counsel argunes in thelr
opposition that even if it was a gift to June, somehow the
property was transported or converted to community property.
Would you say this is chattel in its best definition?

MR. BECKSTROM: That's correct, Your Honor. A dog
i == an example 15 a piang, and I gave the Court the example
of the pianoc. The piano gifted to one person, just bacausa
another person's able to use the pianc, payvs for some
maintenance for the plano, does not transmute the piano into
someons elze's perscnal property.

How, a person can make a claim for money they'wve

G-10-052263-A GUARDHANSHIF OF JONES 121018 TRANSCRIPT
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paid towards maintenance and can maintain a ciwvil suit for
that, but wyou cannot transmute the character of che property.
We went to great lengths t¢ distinguish the cases cited in
there and there's no authority that says you can transmute
personal property by allowing somecne to use it or by someons
putting their name on something and claiming its theirs.

It's not real estate, you can't have an adverse
possession type taking of the property and =--

THE COURT: There’s such as commingling?

MR. BECKSTROM: Yeah, there is. And =-- Judge, if
you leak at the case on commingling --

THE COURT: Well, I mean money.

MR. BECKSTROM: Commingling of money, commingling of

funds, to ==

THE COURT: Can we commingle chattel?

MR. BECKSTROM: No, you cannot. The chattel -- you
can't split a dog in half, the Court's had cases for dogs.
The dog is personal property, if you take the smotion out of
it, you can't cut the dog in half. It"s perscnal property.

And there"s no allegation here that there was any
commingling to purchase the dog. And that's the eonly inguiry
the Court makes here. MNone. They're saying that because
wWwe've done some to maintain for the deg, therefore; we have

sunership, and that's not the law. If they want to seek

G-19:0522634 GUARDIANSHIP OF JONES 1211015 TRANSCRIPT
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reimbursemant for that down the line, that's one thing. But
¥ou can't transmute the character of the property.

hnd if you look at the cases they cited, that's
proven. The only case they cite, the clesest one they can is
an Illingis case, and it has to do with a gift from a husband
to what he said himself iz a bedroom set. He bought it prior
to marriage; the wife and him used the bedroom set together.
The Court found the husband intended teo make the gift to the
community, right? Very different situation here,

We have a third party gift. You ha&ve uneguivocal
evidence stating yeah, we gave this gift to my mom for her
birthday, you have receipts of who purchased the dog, and you
have the dogs living with mom and her Husband well be it, for
years. And then Mom®s cognitive impairment declines, kids

find out, they start to question huskband, they start to

question husband®s son, guess what, dogs are retained and they

haven’t been back in two menths now, three months.

S0 this is very straightforward. Therefs no basis
for these degs to even be at the house as it stands. And at
the best, they're making a 50 percent claim to it. There’s
nothing that indicates these dogs should permanently be

residing with Mr. Yeoman.

THE CQURT: I'm sorry, Counsel. Your appearance for

the record?

G19-052363-A GUARDIAMSHIP OF JOMES 12110118 TRANSCRIFT
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M5. BRENTEIOS: Constantina Rentzios from the Legal
Rid Center, bar number 13747, appearing on behalf of Ms. Maria
Parra-Sandoval from my oifice who's not present today.

THE COURT: Good morning. Counsel, Ms. Simmons,
Donna Simmons, one of the dauvahters; is on the telephons
today.

MS. RENTEZIONS: Okay.

THE COURT; Counsel is arguing his motion first
regarding the property, the dogs, and I've asked a couple of
questions.

M5. RENTZIOS: Okay.

THE COURT: Continue, Counsel.

MR. BECKSTROM: Judge, T mean, I == I think that's
clear, the law’s clear on this issue, and I want toc be clear
to point out that there is no allegation that these dogs were
purchased with community funds.

We have the first dog that, like I -said, there’s no
evidence to dispute the -- the purchase or the gift.
Evidentiary hearing was asked; one is not necessary under the
gtatute, and I'1l point out that the purpose of the
guardianship statutes are to reduce the expense of litigation
ta the protected person.

It*s in the guardianship bill of rights and this is

a continued attempt to drag this through yet additional
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litigation. If I have to put up evidence as to who purchased
the dogs, it'z not going to change one kit from those
declarations. We have everyone here who filled out a
declaration. So to the extent an evidentiary hearing's
gought, it's a complete waste of time and money and I mean,
the cpposition is elear, it's == it's all emotional arguments
and that's just -~ doesn’t cut it.

As to the second dog, facts are further clear that
in 2014, this dog was bred by June's son. It was given to her
as a gift and it was not a gift to == te both Mr. Yeoman and
June, it was a gift te June, gift te Mom. 3o, there’s nothing
additional that's going to become discoverable te aid the
Court in finding who owns these degs. TIt's -- it's all there,
and you know, a motion I -- I understand and in all candor, my
clients are willing to allow the dogs to go over and see Jerry
once in a while because they’re good people,

But June gwns the dogs. And June has told not only
her attorney, but repeatedly tells her guardian that I want my
deogs back. Okay? That's one of the cnly joys June has right
now, so she wants her dogs, the only time she really gets up
to be able to meaningful exercise was when she was able to
walk her dogs. Okay? She did it with assistance.

Contrary to what’s in the opposition, she's not

wheelchair bound and she’s entitled te her property. And
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that’s the Court’'s only decision today is how to protect the
protected person, and that's to give her her property back.

So if you don't have any other issues or guestions
an == on the return of the property, I'm happy to answer them,
bug ==

THE COURT: MNot for now.

MR. BECESTROM: Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you. Counsel?

MBE. KEHOE: Thanks; Your Honor. One of the issues
that is maybe missed here is that even if these were -- even
if Hizky (ph), the first dog, was a gift to June back in 2011,
that was eight years ago. There's eight years of interceding
activity during which time June could do anything she wants
with the dog. She could give it to Jerry, she could sell it,

What they're arguing is that somehow because they
allegedly gave the dog to June eight years ago, that they

retained some sort of control or influence over what she does

with that dog after it's hers. And the evidence is clear that

for eight years, June considered this dog to be a jolnt
property dog. That's what the evidence shows. And that's
important to remember.

Secondly, Charlie. I don't know how they profess
that because Scott’s daughter’s dog was a sperm donor that

somehow that made Nicky's puppies Scort’s daughter's puppies.
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End I'm not a dog breeder, but I don't think thatfs how it
works. I don't think just because that dog got Hicky pregnant
that all of a sudden these are Scott’'s dogs. So I think
there’s a clear issue as to Charlie.

The purchase of the dogs, they say —-

THE COURT: MWell, let's get back to Charlie then.
What do you -- what is your argument that Charlie is community
property?

ME. KEHOE: I =-- I think Nicky was community
property. I think both of them have treated both of these
dogs -~

THE COURT: So can you answer —-—

MR. EEHOE: == as community propsrty.

THE COURT: ~-- my guestion? Generally, the issues
and the reported cases about community property come up in
diverce, right? Mot necesszarily at the guardianship cases.
And so when we talk about community property, when somebody’s
lopking for an offset, there's some type of, you know,
guestion as to how the judge is supposed to split up this
property and give somebody credit or not credit, but there's
certain community property.

The cases about conversion or commingling or
transmutation come because how =-=- out of how the funds are

held and used sometimes. How == what do you think makes a
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gift transmute during btime?

MR. KEHOE: June treating it as if it is Jerry's
property. That’'s how. June -- again, June could hawve 100
percent gifted these dogs te Jerry. &ll of the paperwork that
we've provided indicates that June permitted Jerry to be on
title. Chips, vets, Jerry did all of the initial vaccinations
for Nicky. His handwriting is on that wvaccination sheet.
Literally from day one, Jerry was the caretaker of this dog.
That ==

THE COQURT: Can I ask vou something?

ME., KEHOE: Sure,

THE COURT: 5So just as 1 might allow my nanny or
caretaker or my mother or my sister to take my children to get
vaccinated, do I then give up some type of rights to thar --
to those children because I allow scomebody else to take care
of them?

MR. KEHOE: Well, and this is where the evidentiary
izsues comes in, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Mo, I think this is a —= purely a legal
question.

MR. KEHOE: I == well, that's not what the statutes
say. The statutes say before you take scmebody personal
property away, and we'wve got the cliche of possession is nine-

tenths of the law, and he dispurtes --
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THE COQURT: I den't do things by cliche, Counsel.

MRE. KEHOE: He disputes stealing the dogs. That's
totally disputed. They voluntarily gave him the dogs, because
they know that's where the dogs should be.

S0 what the statutes call for is a due process
roceszs bafore this Court takes away somebedy'sz personal
property. There is a citation that's required, we need to
start a formal proceeding with a citation, and there is an
evidentiary hearing process that the statutes call for.

So let's talk about the gift. I mean, they're just
making this bald face assertion that this was a birthday gift.

First of all, it was three months before the
birthday, so that's interesting. Secend of all, there's an
intervening Christmas, so what =-- if it was two months before
Christmas; why wasn't it a Christmas gift instead ol a
birthday gift in January?

Third of all, let’s look at that paypal receipt.
Does it say gift to June? Does it say purchased by June’s
children? Mo. What it says is deposit from, who, June Jones,
Doesn’t say deposit from Perry (phl, doesn't say deposit from
Robyn, doesn't zay deposzit from June's children, those
documents say nothing about a gift.

The breeder doesn’t remember. They profess that the

breeder conflirms that this was a gifr. That's not what the
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breeder's email says. The breeder's email says I don't have
the records.

S0 they filed a motion claiming this is all clear
and obvious. We filed an opposition saying ne, this isn't
clear and obvicus, we need an evidentiary hearing. They file
a reply brief saying oh no, we don’t, but what do they include
with the reply brief? Four new affidavits. Four new
declarations. Which change some of the prior declarations.
Flus, new documentary evidence, none of which we've had a
chance to respend to or address.

The =-- the process of this gift is not adequately
explained. I mean, you =-=- you talk about if vou let your
nanny do something, I don't know how often you've received a
gift, maybe from your parents or something, that they say now
your husband doesn’t get any part of this.

THE COURT: Quite a lot, actually, Counsel.

ME. KEHOE: Okay.

THE COURT: You could tell my husband that. A&ll
right. Also, I have no relation to Mark Key and Arbach (ph),
50 it's not that Mark Key who's my hushand.

MR. HKEHOE: So they never make clear how this was
conveyed. 1 mean, they talk about this being a gift and yet,
this payment allegedly made for June. I'm sure June doesn't

have a Paypal account, maybe she asked Perry hey, can you pay
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for these dogs for me? But they donft convey how was this
presentad? Who picked up the dogs, Your Honor? I don't know
if you caught that. Jerry and June picked up the dogs. They
didn*t buy these deogs or the first dog Nicky and take it over
to June and say here's a gift. Jerry and June went and picked
up the dog. That's undisputed by them.

How did they convey Jerry doesn’t have any rights to
thia? That’s not clear. That"s not discussed. So the
undisputed facts are Jerry cared for the dogs for eight years.
There’s no evidence denying that. June did not care for the
dogs. There's no evidence denying that.

June cannot now care for the dogs. And I think
that's a huge consideration, Your Honor. Why take the dogs
away from the caregiver and give them to Kimberly? And the
avidence before you is that when Kimberly had the dogs last
time, one dog came back about 15 percent lower weight and both
dogs were uncared for.

They == they haven't brought up the degs for twe
months. B¢ it's an interesting issue of if this is 350
valuabkle and important te June or to them, why has it never
been brought up. Twe attorneys have zent over a detailed list
of thingas that they’'re locking for; the dogs are never
mentioned. Soc as far as the -- the evidentiary hearing;

there®s at least 15 or so misstatements in thelr reply brief.
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And frankly, Your Henor, that'’s one of cur concerns throughout
this case, 15 that these allegations are made without
evidence.

knd so, to start with, Perry, which is Robyn's
husband; says in his declaration, which is Exhibit 2 to her
reply brief, Wicky was purchased by me. I was the only person
who paid for Nicky, But the reply brief says the evidence
alsoc shows June's children paid for Micky. Well, that's not
true. June's children did not pay for Nicky.

The reply brief Exhibit 1, which is Robyrn's brief --
or reply -- or declaration, says no one cother than Perry and I
paid for Nicky. HNow what's ironic about that, Your Honor, is
I presume it would be reasonable for Robyn to zay well, my
husband paid for it. That's -- we're a community, we act like
we're one.

MS. FRIEDMAN: We're not. We're separate.

THE COURT: Ma®am.

M3. FRIEDMAM: Sorcy.

THE COURT: Mr. Michaelson.

MR. KEHOE: But that same theory ironically would
apply to these dogs and June’s treatment of these dogs with
her husband.

Perry =ays in his declaraticon, Nicky was given to

June Jones as a birthday gift collectively from my family,

G-10-052283-4 GUARDIANSHIP OF JONES 12010418 TRANSCRIPT
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Perry's family, and Robyn®s sibklings; June’s children. He's
the only one. He contradicts everybody else. Evervbody else
says these were a gift solely from June's children. He says
well, no, it was actually from me. I paid for it, it’s from
me and my family also. And there's three contradictions of
that.

Interestingly, Robyn, Perry and Kimberly's
declarations all say that Micky was purchased in 201%. That’s
clearly a mistake. Reasonable typo? Probably. But all three
of them reading this declaration separately, signing it
separately, declaring under penalty of perjury that it's true
and correct, all three of them include that same mistake?
That*s an evidentiary issua.

The -- the reply brief says out of courtesy,
Kimberly taking degs —-- Kimberly took the dogs back and forth.
And all of these are footnoted to these alleged declaratiens.
Declarations say nothing about Kimberly taking the dogs back
and forth between the Craft house and the concrete house where
Jerry and June stayed.

That's not == it's not the reality. The reply brief
says in -- again in the body, June has consistently cared for
Wicky and Charlie. That*s false. There is no evidence of
that, They don't even suggest it in their declarations.

The reply brief says emails between Jerry and Robyn
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confirmed this. There's one email from the breeder to Robyn,
it == there’'s no emails between them. It doesn’'t confirm
anything except that photos were sent and there are not
multiple emails. But again, if yeou only read the pleading,
which I can understand and not cress=-check it with all of the
declarations, the pleading presents it as a fact, drops a
footnote that says it's in the attached declaration, but it's
not. Time after time after time.

The reply brief says all of June’s children
confirmed that Wicky was purchased from Jerry as a birthday
gift from June. This is patently false. All we have is
Kimberly and June -- I mean Kimberly and Robyn saying that.

Donna, who's on the phone who was a temporary
guardian, hasn't signed & declaration. Terri who was here as
the neutral party, you know, at the first hearing from
Arizona, hasn't signed a declaration. And yet again,
prezented as fact.

Bobyn says she communicated with the breeder about
the circumstances surrounding the purchase and that's in --
but that's false. Perry communicated with the breeder.

They say that -- repeatedly say the dogs have always
resided -- or lived at the Craft houze. They know that’s not
truse., T didn't -- we keep on telling them it's not true, I

don't know why they keep on fighting it.
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They know that Jerry and June and the dogs lived at
the concrete house since about May. I don't think they're
going to dispute that at all.

MS. FRIEDMAN: Yes.

MB. KEHOE: They'll —— they also --

THE COURT: Mr. Michaelson, like that.

MR. MICHAELSON: Yeah.

THE COURT: I'm done.

MBE. MICHAELSON: I know.

M2. FRIEDMAN: Sorry.

ME. KEHOE: I don't think they also would dispute
that Jerry and June traveled in a moter home for months oot of
the years, regularly gone for months on end in a motor home.
The dogs weren't at Craft during that time. And yet; they
continue to suggest thiz narrative,

The reply brief says, prier te and during June’s
battle with cegnitive impairment, June has consistently cared
for Nicky and Charlie., Again, footnoted, but not in the
declarations. It's nowhere in any evidence.

And then the evidence alsoc demonstrates that Charlie
was similarly gifted to June by Scott from his litter of dogs.
Again, how does Nicky's litter of dogs become Scott’s?
There's no == no explanation for that.

So we understand that there are issues here with
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these degs, Your Honor. We have suggested that the parties
try to reszelwve those issues. Thosfe reguests were entirely
ignored. We —- we have considered maybe mediation makes
sense. But they end their brief with there are no equitable
acguments in favor of Jerry if Your Honor finds that these are
community property. And -- and that's just false.

June cannot provide for the care. Jerry has always
previded for the care. Kimberly undisputedly provided
inadegquate care, We brought that up and they never contested
it.

Jerry’s health condition and then not brought up for
twe months., So under this pianc theory, 1f Your Honor was in
divorce court considering a long, drawn out contested diverce,
and one party said hey, I want the piano, while -- while we're
going through this diverce process. And the other party says
well, Your Henor, she's never used the piano, I'm a concert
pianist, I use this piano regularly all the time, if there is
a contest over this for X amount of time, then it would seem
to make sense to let the piano stay with me; the person who
has always used it, the only person that uses it, the person
that gets the value out of it.

ks far --

THE COURT: And then, Counsel, consistent with that,

thera would be extreme offset, so the -- if the pianc’s worth
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51,000, somebody would be giving up 51,000 to the other side.
So what's -- what's the offer up?

MR. KEHOE: We are happy to buy new dogs, we are
happy bto pay, we are happy bte agree that upon Mc. Yeoman's
passing; the dogs can go back to June. We are happy to 4o £o0
mediation and try to come up with a solution.

THE COURT: I think all of those things I don't have
jurisdiction over. Anything else?

MR. HEHOE: I don"t know --

THE COURT: Pre-estate planning for your client is
not within my jurisdiction.

ME. KEHOE: Well, but the parties can agree to that.

THE COURT: . Sure.

MR. KEHQE: And that's -- we do have jurisdicrion
over mediation. You can order the parties to mediation.

THE COURT: Anycthing else, Counsel?

ME. KEHOE: HNo, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Counsel?

MS. RENTZIOS: Your Honor =-=

THE COURT: You'wve read all the pleadings or Ms.
Parra-Jandoval has?

M5, RENTZIOS: 1 have all of them.

THE COURT:. Okay. And I == I don't see a filing

from your office on this issue. Do you have a representation?
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M5. BRENTZIOS: Yes, Your Honor. Ms. June has
represented to Maria that she does want the dogs back, she
azks for them everyday. She was willing to share them with
Jerry if they could come up with some kind of amicable
agreement. ©n point with the community property and
transmutation, I would venture to zay that okay, we're using
all these analogies; piancs and this and that, If I'm gifted
a car from let's say my parents and I'm married, and I ride in
that car with my husband, every now and then he takes the car
for an oil change, if we diveorece or split up, that car doesn’t
belong to him, it's still mine.

And I'd =ay that in this regard that the animals are
the zame. I understand it's & more emotional subject, but the
fact is we're disputing whether or not the Paypal money was
this child®'s or this child’s husband, well, the fact is it's
not Jerry and June’s money that paid for the dogs. So we're
kind of skirting arcund the issues which are that the dog was
not paid for with community property: Nicky.

Secondly, Counsel has asked how breeding rights work
when it comes to one dog being bred to another., Well, since
Nicky was June's dog and this is just off of breeding rights,
when a dog is studded to another dog. the perszon who studs the
dog gets to keep the litter, except for I think one or two

picks of the dogs. The rest do belong to the stud, the male,
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Shih Tzu or whoever it was that was bred to Wicky. So Scott
did -- I believe that was hisz name. Scott did have the right
to gift that dog to June. It's not community property.

End that's I think the only --

THE COURT: Counsel, the -- Counsel’'s asking for an
evidentiary hearing. Counzel says WRE 15%.305% controls and a
petition alleging that another person has disposed of money of
the protected person or has evidence of interest of property
to the protected person; and it allows within there the court
to hear -- order people to answer upon cath. And so upon ocath
kind of indicates that it allows the Court the possibility of
holding an evidentiary hearing.

What is your position on whether or not an
evidentiary hearing is needed and whether that particular
statute controls?

M5. RENTZIOS: I would venture to say that an
evidentiary hearing is not nesded. I don't think that there’s
really any dispute as to -=- clear dispute as to ownership,
legally. An evidentiary hearing would be -- I mean, a waste
of resources, a waste of my client’'s money if she's paying for
some of the counsel here, and I just doen’t think it’s needed.
If it were, I would request that the dogs be returned to June
in the meantime, and then based on the finding at the

evidentiary hearing if Your Honor did find that they were
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better suited or I guess more legally owned by Jerry, then
they would be returned. But in the meantime, she’'s already
been without them.

They're her companicn animals as well. And this
poor woman is suffering from some cognitive issues, so I would
hate fer her to have to be without these dogs any longer.

THE COURT: Counsgel, do you think it == I == I think
I know what you're geoing to say, but I'm geing to make sure
thar chattel or property:; a specific property, not funds;
510,000, cannot be transmuted or commingled?

M5. BENTEIOS: Absoclutely, Your Honeor.

THE COURT: All right. Anybody elsze on that issue?

MR. BECESTROM: Yeah, Judge., I'd like to address a
couple points here, because what Mr. Kehoe argued was
nonexistent law and they ware emotional facts. And we
provided the Court with case after case from the Nevada
Supreme Court that says when you look at characterization of
property, you disregard opinieons. I thought, this socunds
right, would be a good idea, to -~ going back te the pianec
example, that's false. The courts don't do that.

o the ownership issve is clear. There's no dispute
here except for Mr. Kehoe and his ¢lients who tend to believe
that, you know, June comes up cognitive impairment, they

snateh the deogs, take them to their house, and now it’s ch, we
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have the dogs; the presumption is look, we have them, come and
get them, and there's been nothing here to suggest what's
going to change during an evidentiary hearing.

Wow, it*s a ludicrous attack on the declarations.
What you have here is clear, There's notes saying gift for
June Joneg, here’'s the purchase receipts. You want me Lo put
Mr. Friedman up here, let's do it right now, it'=s going te
take five minutes. Do you want me to put all the kids up here
and say it was a glfer, fine. What evidence is he going to
have that says it wasn't a gift? MNone.

The gift is undisputed from the children. And
that’s the issue. Everyone sees it except Mr. Kehoe. 5o
that's nonexistent for the Court to even consider. Best
interest of the dogs is nonexistent for the Court as well.
They're not children. They are a chattel. That's all they
are.

I'm sorry everyone in this rcom doesn’t want to hear
that, but they are personal property. MHothing unlike a takle.
Okay? We don't cut the dogs in half, there has been clear and
cofvineing evidence put inm front of you to show that they were
separate property, nothing to show that it's been transmuted,

And if the Court looks at the case law on
transmutation of property, letfs loock at it. It*s always when

a husband or wife puts the property in a deed in writing
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changing the name on it, puts the wife on the account, lets
the wife draw out of the account, makez a material
representation to change that property. And that's not here.

So that is a nonissue. And the facts are the dogs
have consistently lived in the Craft Avenue property. In
fact, Jerry lived there for years. Sc just because, you know,
in the past six months when June's, yvou know, children came in
and saw wow, what's happening to =-- Mom’s not right, he has
now taken the dogs. Just because he goes and puts his name on
8 microchip and takes the dog to the vet does not convey
oWwnership. It's irrelevant.

And you only need an evidentiary hearing for
material faects, It i3 an issue of law as to what the
characterization of the property i=s, we'wve cited the case law
to the Court, and you can make that finding right now.

THE COURT: ©Okay. Thank you., Anything else on that
izsue, Mr. Kehoe?

MR, KEHCE: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: ‘And I don't mean to keep ignoring you;
Counsel, but if you -= if you need to say something, pleass
feel free.

MR. PICCOLO: No, he's lead Counsel, so he's —--

THE COURT: All right. Thank yeou.

ME. KEHOE: And he is whispering suggestions, Your
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Honor, The statute 159.305(2) says each party to the petition
may produce witnesses and such witnesszes may be examined by
either party. That's the due process that the legislature has
set up.

THE COQURT: May.

MR. BECHKETROM: Yeah, it's & may. And that’s what 1
wanted to point out to the Court.

MR. KEHOE: Yes, because we don't have to examine
them. And just because they file a petition, Your Honor
dogan’t have to issue a citation if you believe that the
petition is rogue or it's by a —— by a -- you know, a pro per
and Your Honor says vou know what, no, I -- T don't think
there’s anough here to cite this perscon in to court to decide
whether or not they should have to return the property that's
in their position.

But here, that®'s what Your Honor is considering, is
ordering Mr. Yeoman to return property that is in his
possession. And I believe the statute says one, that Your
Honor is required to cite him in to court if that’s what
you're considering deing, and that he has the right teo examine
the witnesses against him. And that's just standard general
law for -—— for due process.

Egain, I think that’'s being missed as the

transmutation is what June did with the dogs for elght years.
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I think that's relevant. They're zaying well, he stole the
dogs and then went out and put a chip in, that's totally false
again. The evidence is that the chip was in his name before
any of these issues ever arose.

The -= itfs -- it rela: ——

THE COURT: We have a lot of other things. Anything
else on the dogs today?

MFR. KEHOE: It reminds me of the probate cases where
there's a dispute about grandpa’s pocket watch. And cne
grandchild says grandpa gave me that pocket watch, and the
other grandchildren say well, no, he couldn’t have done that,
he promised it to me or something else. I have lost every one
of those cases, Judge, because you can’t prove what grandpa
did with his pocket watch over the years. And they cannct
prove what June did with these dogs --

THE COURT: Is it --

MR. KEHOE: -- for eight years.

THE COURT: Isn®t it your burden to prove if you -
if you believe that June gifted it to him, that that would be
for you to prove?

MR. KEHOE: We have. We have presented evidence to
that effect, through all of this documenration. Jerry also
puts in his declaration that he never heard this discussed as

a gift. You do have contradicting evidence here, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: Okay. So what I'm going to do is this:

I disagree with Mr. Kehoe that T have to hold an
evidentiary hearing, but we have a date set. I'm going to set
it for evidentiary hearing on that day. You have all of 30
minutes to finalize this issue.

I11 cell you that it is a likely Court outcome that
I accept the statements of law and conclusiconz of law as szet
forth from the Petiticners in this casze. 1 think it's claar.
It -- the dogs would =-=- in this case, it"s not divorce case,
£0 your best argument is that it was scomehow a4 gift to yvour
client, but we don’t have a letter gifting it, we don't have
anything gifting that. I'm not inclined to accept your legal
arguments about that it was =- there's some transmutation or
best interest of the dogs or that he was the primary caretaker

r that the name on the chip is dispositive a3z to ownership,
all of those things. 0Okay?

Your best argqument and secopnd theny; is that it's
somehow community property. She has a right to community
property. These two are not divorced. The finality.and final
issue of ownership would then, after a guardianship decision,
would be left to the divorece court really, right? 5o it is
likely at that evidentiary hearing, based on what I'm seeing
today, that those == I would make an order turning over those

dogs to the protected person immediately.
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1 I would expect to hear a reguest for attorneys fees.

L %]

I think that this issue we have spent a lot of ink and

3 f argument today on, but I think that we will hear it to resolwve
4 ) any due process and -- issues for appellate purposes on the

5§ evidentiary hearing that we have set.

& I"11 tell you; though, I think that the law is very
7| well settled, the presentation of the law was very well dene

B tn the brief. Legal Aid agrees with her position and there we

94 oo.

10 So let'sa go to the civil suit.

11 MR. BECKSTROM: Your Honor; just asz a side note
12 || then.

13 THE COURT: Yes.

14 ME. BECRSTROM: So as of now, based on the -= the

15 Court’s == I know it's not a preliminary ruling, but the dogs
16| should be returned until the pendency of the hearing.

17 THE COURT: ‘fou know, I == I am concerned about the
18 § inability to work tegether in this case and the position that

1% | she has =-- she hasn’t seen the dogs in months and months.

20 MR. BECKSTROM: Well, and that’s the concern.
21 THE COURT: Well, and that concerns me. And if =--
22 || you know, Lf -- 1if that's their strategy to continue that, and

23| let this poor lady not even see her dogs, for & couple of

24 | months, then what a strategy and what a statement you're
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making to me. All right?

So 1 == I'm not going to make that order. They are
at the bottom, their best day is community property, right,
and s¢ she -- she should be seeing these dogs. You know, I
don't want to set a -- a visitaticon schedule for the dogs.

MR. BECKSTROM: And I don't think that's necessary.
But even if =- if the cne dog we've zuggested being returned
during the pendency, I mean, this iz all Jupne has and
likewise, I understand Jerry has a relationship with these
dogs, but this was her reguest. This was her reguest to her
attorney, thiz has been her request repeatedly to her
guardian, and I think it"s unfair through the holiday season
to not allew June have one dog while the Court recognizes 99.9
percent of everything is going to be shown as true in this 30-
minute upcoming evidentiary hearing, the dogs should be
returned during the pepdency. That's what eguity would allow.

THE COURT: Counszel, do -- would you stipulate to
return one deog until that February date? What is i, February
20th?

MR. KEHOE: 1 asked my client that, Your Honor,
because it was in their pleading and he said no.

MR. BECKSTROM: Okay.

MR. KEHOE: He said these dogs have literally never

been separated.
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ME. BECKSTROM: 5o I want that on the record so the
Court c¢an take note that this is what we're dealing with. 3o
if the Court's decision is not te allew both dogs because he
doesn’t want to return them, his best day, which isn't going
to happen, is he gets 50 percent, which iz he can't cut the
dog in half, and Your Honor's going te decide what happens
with the dog. So we want Nicky at least through the holidays.
That's what*s fair,

THE COURT:! Counsel?

M5. RENTEIOS: I would have to agree with that, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: Counsel, and I know that I -- you're a
bit hamstrung because you’re not Ms. Parra-Sandoval today,

MS. RENTEZIOQS: Correct.

THE COURT: But what has the protected person's
wishes about those degs and her communication been?

M3, RENTZIOS: She does want them back. She asks
about them everyday, every time Maria goes to see her, talks
to her, she asks about the dogs. She’s adamant that she wants
them. GShe miszses them dearly, 1it's a source of distress for
her, and emoticnal rurmoil.

Like I did say, she did say she was willing to share
them with Jerry, but it doesn't sound like Jerry's willing to

share them with her. And I understand --
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MR. KEHQE: That’'s not true,

MZ. RENTZIOS: == the need for due pr -- excuse me.
1 understand the need for due process toe take the dogs from
her (sic}, but she wasn’t given due process when they were
taken from her and she's really the legal, riahtful owner. So
I would have to agree with Counsel that at least one of the
dogs should be returned to her so she can have some type of ==

THE COURT: Mr. Kehoe, as to a temporary order
before that February hearing?

MR. KEHOE: ©Oh, I -- for the reasons I stated,
Judge, the -- I think we still have not accomplished due
pProcess., That's what Your Honor is recognizing. We
completely --

THE COURT: Ng, no, no. Mo, no. That's not -- let
me make sure. What I'm trying to do is make an absolutely
perfect record and eliminate every issue on appeal so that
this litigation isn’t prolonged and we don’t have attorneys
fees that are just adding up and adding up and adding up, so
we don’t have a writ going to the Supreme Court in the middle
of this litigation and then your regquest to stay litigation as
to major issues over the dogs. Okay?

Sc I am not recognizing that an evidentiary hearing
reguires due process. To the contrary, I've said that I

accept the law as presented by the Petitioners. However, in
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order to eliminate all issues on appeal, I'm setting it for
evidentiary hearing., So —-

MR. KEHOE: And I thipnk that makes sense, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: OQkay. S0 as to a temporary order
panding that evidentiary hearing?

MR. KEHOE: T -- I don't see any grounds to separate
these dogs.

THE COURT: Okay. So the dogs have been with Jerry
gsince May: iz that right?

MR. BECESTROM: No, they've been there == they were

M5. FRIEDMAN: October.

MR. BECESTROM: == at the Craft Avenue house, we
produced records of the caratakers whe were with June, a third
party, who was walking the dogs with June at the Craft Avenue
house. They have lived there.

THE COURT: How long has Jerry had them in his sole
possession?

MR. BECKSTROM: The past two months, approximately.

THE COURT: Two months? Okay.

M5. FEIEDMAN: Like October.

HMR. BECESTROM: He's refused to return them.

THE COURT: ©Okay. S0 I =-- at =-- as an issue of

G-18-052263-A GUARDIAMEHIP OF JONES 1211018 TRANSCRIPT
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIFPTION. LLC (520 303-T356

33

613




14
15
1a
17
14
19
20

21

23
24

egquity, I think it makes sense to réturn them by 5:00 tomorrow
to her temporarily, pending the evidentiary hearing. She will
have them for less than two months, certainly. Mr.
Michaelson?

MR. MICHAEL3OH: When you're == when you ==

THE COURT: Because he’s had them in his szole
possession for two monthz and she can have them in her
possession for less than two months and 1711 make a fipal
decision in February at the evidentiary hearing,

Mr. Michaelson, you wanted te say?

MR. MICHAELSON: I just =-- thank you, Your Honor. 1
just wanted to point out that this iz a classic definition of
elder abuse. Under NRS 200, when parties take action that
causes emotional discress to a person, that is elder abuse.
And that’'s what's gone on here; we took the house and then
said come and get me. Took her out of state, said come and
get me, Take the dogs, say come and get me. That's a
strategy and that is elder abuse consistent and throughout
this is what the statutes were talking about.

Another thing 1'd peint out about this that's --
that is consistent with what Your Honor is saying is the
guardianship statutes are drawn up to have a certain level of
economy to them because of these situvatiens. And this 13

being drug out to an extreme degree over every case. 1 just =
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= I agree and appreciate your ruling on this about the
evidentiary hearing.

I think when the weight of the evidence is on one
side, wvou normally wouldn®t have to hold that, but I agree in
thiz case maybe to prevent all possibility of that,

One last thing iz on the micro chip, the micro chip
was inserted after the onset of dementia. And for whatever
reason, upon information and belief, Jerry put his name on it
and then put his daughter as like the secondary person on the
chip. And what that means is if he passes away, which they'wve
acknowledged in their pleadings he's terminal, if he passes
away, the dogs, they're -- now there's a legal confusion
argument about them going to Jerry's daughter and not back to
June,

And so I would ask that you authorize the guardian
to take whatever action is necessary to change that chip, even
if it*s to put it in a more neutral posture, but it just can't
be the way Jerry put that.

THE COURT: Counsel, as to the chip, I mean, I don'"t
know even if I order something about the chip today, it would
be executed before that February date.

MR, KEHCE: There’'s no evidence about that chip;
Your Honor. I den’t believe it's true that it happened after

== or pefore =-- after her cognitive impairment. I'm not aware
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of that., there's no evidence to that fact. And -- and these
statements continue to be made, Your Honcr. I mean, they're -
= they're worried about the dogs and they're not worried about
June being with her husband. They literally went to Arizona
and kidnapped June from her hushand.

And they're talking about elder abuse by Jercy.

THE COURT: All right. We're getting far afield.

ME. BECESTROM: Yes.

THE COURT: As to the civil suit --

MR. KEHOE: 3So == no, I'm sorry. @As to the dogs, we
request a stay pending appeal, because we will ke appealing,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: Denied.

ME. MICHRELSCHN: Your Honor,; may I just make one
miner == I know we need to move on.

THE CQURT: Yeah,

MR. MICHRELSCHW: But on that chip point, mavba you
could say since he zays there’s no evidence, mavbe yvou could
say a limiced order that said if it is discovered that the
chip registration in some way leaves the dogs in terms of that
micro chip processing to his daughter, that if that's the
case, that the guardian can take whatever steps are necessary
to undo that.

THE COURT: Mr. Michaelson, I'*m not -- I really
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don®t think that the chip designation is dispositive as to
ownership, okay?

MR, MICHAELSON: Agreed.

THE COURT: And that I will part and parcel of my
decisicen in February will be about the chip. I den't want to
make a temporary order about the chip and then have te changs
it again. Okay?

MER. MICHAELSOM: Understood.

THE COURT: All right. As to the ¢ivil action;
Counsel?

MR. BECKSTROM: Judge, very brief on this issue. 1
don’t think I need toc say much more than what's gone on here.
The guardian, and the Court recognized this during the last
Cctoher 15th hearing, the guardian has looksd at the facts,
she's obtained as many bank statements as she could so far,
she's found a significant trail of what we believe is elder
abuse at -- to Mr. Michaelson's point, we do believe there has
been intenticnal actions since these proceedings have started
to punish June, And she’s suffering mentally from this.

Her guardian can testify that she’s having bowel
issues, she's being stood up by her hushand for visits who's
not coming. The keeping of the dogs from her, The money
taken from the accounts which we'wve asserted. These issues

need to be brought in a separate civil case. We're ready to
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bring it., We've presented the Court with the draft petition
for the same, and we'd ask that the Court allew us leave to
file that.

THE COURT: Mr. Kehoe.

MR, KEHOE: The issue, Your Honor, is whether it
makes sense to continue to run up fees, They'tre -- they're
happy to run up fees on some things and then they complain
about running up fees on others. Your Honor has already
ordered a financial analysis of June's records and an analysis
of the Craft house transaction. That's already pending. So
why would Your Honor suggest that —- 1 think there’s seven or
mare attorneys involved now, go out and start their own
independent investigation pursuing the szame claims?

If Your Honor wants to, we don't really oppose it.
But it doesn't seem to comport =-

THE COURT: 1It's not my decision, it"s the
guardian’s decision. They're asking for permission.

ME. KEHOE: It doesn't seem to comport with their
interest in reducing the expenses of this case. So == 50
they're going to go spend tens of thousands of dollars
pursuing these claims and there's nothing even alleged
ongoing. There is no urgency, there is no anything that needs
to be stopped.

THE COURT: Does the statute of limitations need to
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be preserved, Counsel?

MR. BECESTROM: Well Judge, arguably there’d be a
tolling argument here, but I mean =--

THE COURT: Well, that would he the argument.

MR. BECKETROM: It would be the argument, but yeah,
let -- let's put it this way. The house still remains in
Dick’s name, sc that's a real pressing issue to my client,
right? 5Sole asset. When you ask her hey, did you sign your
house cver ==

THE COURT: There was a representation that that was
going to be done or resclved early on --

HMR. BECESTROM: Yeah.

THE COURT: =-- in this litigation and it still
hasn"t. Counsel =--

HMR. BECESTROM: There's alsc been representations
that they would be forthcoming with information, we've
received a big fat nothing. 5So we need a civil case and he
doesn’t even have standing to be arguing this. This is the
Court's decision as to whether we have a good faith basizs to
bring a ¢ivil suit to protect a protected person. We've
presented ample evidence of that and it just needs to be cut
off at that, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay. Well, I'm going to let him opposze

it, He filed an opposition which was interesting.
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MR. KEROE: Again, to protect the protected person.

THE COURT: Sure.

ME. KEHOE: There == there is no protection
currently needed. There is resolution of prior issues and
we've always acknowledged that. But that's what Your Honor is
trying to address with the report on January l4th.

THE COURT: Well, I'm =-=-

MR. KEHOE: The only =--

THE COURT: Hold on. Ms. Joenes is here. She just -
= Ms. Jones, your appearance for the rececrd?

M3. 5. JONES: Sonia Jones, Guardianship Complisnoe
Office, Financial Forensic Specialist. I camé to hear the
facts of this hearing today.

THE COURT: Thank you, Ms, Jones. And I see that
you're —— you're on for the ld4th for your return; is that
right?

M5. 5. JONES: Yes,

THE COURT: All right.

M5. S, JONES: I just == I just came to get clarity

THE COURT: &All right. Do ==
ME. 5. JONES: =-- on what ==
THE COURT: Do you have any guestions from today or

anyrhing you want to add?
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Ms. 5. JONES: Well, I plan to do a review. I just
wanted direction at -- I know they’re married, I didn't -- I
got confused when 1 was reading all the notes and minutes.

THE COURT: Well, I don’'t know why you would be
confused with the 3,000 filings in this case, Ms. Jones.

MS. 5. JONES: I never —-- I never have to come to

hearings like this, but it was so much scuff going on with the

home and they're still married, so I got a little confused as

to what am 1 looking for, what time period, where are the --
where's the monay in the account, are they joint accounts. I
just need basic information. I would like to work with the
guardians to divvy out what I'm looking for.

THE COURT: Certainly. And I*d aszk from Counsel,
that each of you -- if Ms. Jones calls you with a guestion or
needs some clarificaticon on something she reads; would you
certainly be able to give ==

MR. KEHOE: One hundred percent, Your Honor.

THE COURT: == give her that information?

MR. BECESTROM: Yeah, and I intend to reach out to
her actually.

THE COURT: Mr. Michaelson?

MR. BECESTROM: And that's -- that's -- wa want to
give her as much information as we can.

THE COURT: &All right. ©Okay. That would be
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helpful. Anything else, Ms. Jones, that you want to add?

MS. 5. JOMNES: That is all.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you. Sorry. Go
ahead, Mr. Kehoe.

MF. KEHOE: The only thought, Your Honor; is their
lawsuit neow is bringing in Candy Powell who is the wife of
Diek Powell, that Dick is the one that purchased the home from
June, I -- I personally believe that this iz just additicnal
harassment. This is additional sour grapes by them against my
clients and that Candy is an indication of that. And an
additional indication, but we'll litigate it when we need to
litigate it,

But one of their claims in their complaint, if you
happen to see, i= chat they gave June tens of thousands of
dollars in gift cards, which my clients allegedly stole from
June. Stole these 310 McDonald gift cards that existed in the
massive amount of tends of thousands of dollars worth. This
ig lunacy what's going on here.

It == it just deesn’t need to be going like this.
And == and we don't need seven more attorneys pursuing a =--
another lawsuit while Ma, Jones is capably investigating the
Same .

THE COURT: I'1ll rell wvou in seven months, Ms. Jones

has never had to attend a hearing so that she can understand
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what*s going on. I‘d argue or just notice =--

M5. 5. JONES: Hever.

THE COURT: == that this might be a complicated
circumstance.

ME. BECKSTROM: Judge; there's not seven attorneys.
I den't know what representation it is. Mr. Luszeck’s not
here, I'm here in his place, there's going to be one attorney
handling this issue, so to that extent it doesn’t mean
anything, but =--

THE COURT: Well, I don’t think you'd think I'd
approve billings for seven lawyers.

MR. BECKSTROM: Of course, Judge. And -- and that's
the point. And you know, why -—— I den't want to litigate the
merits of this case, there’'s a lot of facts that we're going
to have to discover in the A case.

THE COURT: 1It"s not in front of me.

MR. BECKSTROM: It's not.

THE COURT: That's for the A case, And listen, that
Judge can == can dole out zanctions and —-—

MR. BECKSTEOM: Right.

THE COURT: -- dismiss and grant summary judamesnts
and do all kinds of things. It'=s not for me to comment or ==

MR. BECKSTROM: Correct.

THE COURT: == & predict, and I don't Kknow.
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Counsel, as to the filing of the ciwvil litigation,

M5. RENTZIOS: Juna has let Maria know that she’s
okay with a suit being filed against Candy and the husband,
her husband, but not against Jerry. She doesn't want to
pursue anything against her husband.

ME. BECKSTROM: And --

THE COURT: Iz he named in the litigation?

MR. BECKESTROM: Well, he is, Judge, because as you
know, we have to be careful how we plead this and == and we
understand June’s position as to this is her husband, but we
have to protect her interest. And as the evidence shows right

now, i1t show= that he cleared out those marital accounts. So

THE COQURT: Despite your -- June's concerns, and I
understand thosze and those are reaszonable and I've considered
that; and the opposition filed by Mr, Kehoe for the filing of
the eivil suit, the guardians are going to be granted the
opportunity to file that civil suit as the caption reads
currently with the inclusion of Jerry among others,

All right. <Counsel, you'll get an order for that.

That leaves then any other issues today, Counsel?

MR. BECKSTROM: I don't think so, Judge. Do we have
a date for that evidentiary hearing?

THE CQURT: I do have future dates; one January l4th
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at 1:30 for the investigator’s report, then I have another
date February Z0th at 1:30 for evidentiary hearing/status
check. I'm going to give you each 30 minutes to deal with
this dog issue.

I'm going to give you direction to stipulate to the
entry of =zome documents, because just the documents themselves
Wwe're going te 30 minutes hustle right through. I don’t want
opening arguments, I'm going to take closing briefs, the law
you've already given me, and I think is pretty clear. So
wa're going to have to hustle through that., I den't want to
spend an inordinate amount of time on that.

ME. BECESTROM: And Your Honor, capn we just have
permission to have some of the witnesses appear
telephorically? We have two in California, I'd hate to have
them fly out here. That's Scott Simmons =--

THE COURT: Do you have any chjection to that,
Counsel?

MR. KEHOE: MNo, Your Honcor.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. BECHSTROM: Thank you.

THE COURT: Counsel, you have to file that notice.

MR, BECHSTROM: Yeah, I'"ll do that.

THE COURT: Before the hearing so wa have the phons

numbers. Anything else from today?
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MR. KEHCE: I doubt it's going te go anywhere, Your
Honor, but the gquestion of supervision, supervised visits that
came up at the last hearing and that Your Honor had concern
about medical records and Mr. Yecman's fitness to be alone
with his wife, we obtained & doctor's == or medical provider’s
declaration regarding that. The representations were made in
connection with disputing the order that we could do a
stipulation and order down the road if we are willing to be
compliant.

We have now provided that t¢ -

THE COURT: Counsel, they got you that declaration?

ME. BECKSTROM: I haven't =zeen this.

THE COURT: Ms. Parra—-Sandoval, you got that? Het,
Ms. Parra --

MR. BECKSTROM: This is the firsr time I'wve heard --

Ms. REHNTZIOS: 1 didn't see that.

THE COURT: OQkay. Did you -- ah no.

MR. KEHOE:  Yes. It went to the guardian's only
attorney that existed at that time which is Mr. Luszeck and he
responded with additional concerns.

ME. BECKSTROM: Well, what is the reguest right now?
Are you wanting -- are you --—

THE COURT: I think he®s talking about thers was --

there was issues at the last hearing about wisitation between
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husband and wife and whether or not that needed not
necessarily =--

MR, BECESTROM: Correct.

THE COURT: -- supervised might be the incorrect
description; but that he was not capable physically, there was
gome real guestion about caring for her on his own --

MR, BECKSTROM: Uh-huh.

THE COURT: -~ during those wisitations.

ME. BECKSTROM: Correct.

THE COURT: <Certainly, you know, there was guestion
about whether or not someone should be at the house to take
care of her if she falls, right?

MF. BECKSTROM: Correct. Yep.

THE COURT: 0Or -- or take care of her if she needs
something. And that was part of the concern. Your
predecessor had requested some medical records. They cpposed.
They didn’t want to turn over any medical records., &And so I
said well, you know =--

MR. BECKSTRCM: Yeah, and I'm == so I'm on the same
page.

THE COURT: == no unsupervised.

MR. BECKSTROM: Yeah, and nothing =-- there’s been no
change of circumstances. All we know now iz that he's in

apparently worse condition, he’s guote unquote terminal, and
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we need all those medical records. 1I'11 speak with Mr.
Luszeck as to what happened, but 1 think the events today have
showed you that there are concerns of him being aleone with
Juna, not only physically, but for the representations that
have gone forward; not wanting to release the property back to
her, not wanting to =-- to work in good faith te share these
dogs.

While it may be kind of a stupid thing, that's a big
deal when the Court has to consider the safety of the
protected person. Sc nothing®s changed.

THE COURT: Well Counsel, it socunds as though he
didn®t get any documents you sent -- you sent over to --

MR. KEHOE: Well, I don't think he had appeared at
that point.

THE COURT: Right. But you fent them over to his
eolleague has geotten them; is that right?

MR. KEHOE: Yeah, his =-- his co =-=- well, Mr.
Luszeck.

THE COURT: All right. Received them?

MR. KEHOE: His co-counsel.

MR. BECHSTROM: Yeah.

MR. KEHOE: Absolutely.

THE COURT: And you've had conversations with him?

MR. KEHOE: Yes.
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THE COURT: Okay. Well, it scounds like he hasn't --

MR. BECKSTROM: We need the medical records.
There's --

THE COURT: It's not on the calendar today.

ME. BECESTROM: Yeah.

MR. KEHOE: Right.

THE COURT: And he doesn't have the information that
-— or perhaps privy to the conversations you have, s you
continue to work on that and if it becomes further an issue;
you can put it back on calendar.

ME. KEHOE: Okay.

THE COURT: Thank you, Counsel.

MR, BECESTROM: Court's going to issue an order?

THE COURT: Counszel, you'll get me an order: You'll
get me an order.

MR. BECKSTROM: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

({FROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 10:35:21)
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
IN THE MATTER OF THE GUARDIANSHIP
OF THE PERSON AND ESTATE OF:
Case No.: G-19-052263-A
KATHLEEN JUNE JONES Dept. No.: B

An Adult Protected Person.

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER

Please take notice that an Order Granting Motion for Return of Property of Protected
Person and Motion for Confirmation to Bring Civil Actions on Behalf of Kathleen June Jones
was filed on the 23rd day of December, 2019, a copy of which is attached hereto.

Dated this 23rd day of December, 2019.

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By __ /s/James A. Beckstrom
Geraldine Tomich, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 8369
James A. Beckstrom, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones,
Guardian of Kathleen June Jones
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| hereby certify that the foregoing NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER was submitted

electronically for filing and/or service with the Eighth Judicial District Court on the 23rd day of
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Ty E. Kehoe, Esg.
KEHOE & ASSOCIATES
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Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq.
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| further certify that | served a copy of this document by mailing a true and correct copy
thereof, postage prepaid, addressed to:
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Attorneys for Kimberly Jones,
Guardian of Kathleen June Jones

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
IN THE MATTER OF THE GUARDIANSHIP
OF THE PERSON AND ESTATE OF: Case No.: G-19-052263-A
Dept.No.. B
KATHLEEN JUNE JONES
An Adult Protected Person.

ORDER GRANTING MOTION FOR RETU F PROPERTY OF PROTECTED

PERSON AND MOTION FOR CONFIRMATION TO BRING CIVIL ACTIONS OF
BEHALF OF KATHLEEN JUNE J

0O TEMPORARY GUARDIANSHIP X GENERAL GUARDIANSHIP

O Person O Person
O Estate O Estate [J Summary Admin.
O Person and Estate Person and Estate
O SPECIAL GUARDIANSHIP O NOTICES/SAFEGUARDS
O Person O Blocked Account Required
O Estate O Summary Admin. O Band Required

O Person and Estate

The Petition for Return of Property of Protected Person, and the Petition for Confirmation

to Bring Civil Actions on Behalf of Kimberly Jones, having come before the Court on the 10th

day of December, 2019 at 9:30 a.m., and this Court having considered the pleadings, papers,

Page 1 of
g 3 MAC:15820-00¢ 12/12:2019 2:34 PM

RECEIVED

CEC 13 2018
OURT
OISTRICTS

Case Number: G-19-052263-A

632



V]

Las Vegas, Nevada 89145

{702) 3820711 FAX: (702) 382-5816

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING
10001 Perk Rum Dirive

W o w1 O W R W N e

NSO ORON N RN RN R e e e et ke e e e e
6 ~ G A B W R = S W e N AW B W N = O

declarations, and documents on file herein, the arguments of counsel, and being
otherwise fully advised following a duly noticed hearing and good cause appearing
hereby FINDS as follows:

1. The COURT FINDS AND ADOPTS the legal authority as presented by Petitioner
concemning the characterization of the dogs as personal property.

2. The COURT FURTHER FINDS an evidentiary hearing for retum of property
under NRS 159.315 is not mandatory, but hercby sets the matter for an evidentiary hearing on
February 20, 2020, with the following conditions:

a. Petitioner's witnesses located in California are authorized to appear
telephonically;

b. Each side shall be limited to thirty (30) minutes;

c. The parties shall stipulate to the entry of documents with proposed
exhibits submitted to the Court by February 3, 2020;

d. No opening staternents will be allowed;

e. Closing briefs will be ordered by the Court; and

f. The Court shall consider a motion for attorney’s fees and costs following
the conclusion of the February 20, 2020 hearing.

3. The COURT FURTHER FINDS based on the documentary and testimonial
evidence submitted by the partics, and the report from counsel of the protected person, with each
party having the opportunity to be heard, Petitioner has set forth a prima facie case that the dogs
(commonly referred to as Nikki and Charlie) were gifted to the protected person and therefore
separate property of the protected person, as presented in the declarations presented by
Petitioner,

4, The COURT FURTHER FINDS that based upon the documentary and testimonial
evidence submitted by the parties and the report from counsel of the protected person, both dogs
having been in the sole possession of Respondent for the past two months and the protected
person not having had access to the dogs during this time, good cause exists to enter a

TEMPORARY GUARDIANSHIP ORDER pursuant to NRS 159.305, ordering the return of
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Nikki and Charlie 1o the Guardian of the protected person by December 11, 2019 by or before
5:00 P.M., until the Court’s decision following the forthcoming February 20, 2020 evidentiary
hearing.

5. The COURT FURTHER FINDS Petitioner has set forth good cause to file a civil
action on behalf of the protected person against each of the parties listed within Petitioner's
moving papers and hereby authorizes the Guardian to initiate a civil lawsuit within the Eighth
Judicial District Court.

1T IS SO ORDERED.

Dated this ____day of December, 2019,

DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

Prepared and Submitted by:

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

)

Geraldme Tomic e,
evada Bg 8369
Jarmes A, Beckstrom, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 14032

10001 Park Run Drive

Las Vegas, Nevada 89145

Attorneys for Kimberly Jones, Guardian of
Kathleen June Jones

Approved as to Form and Content:

LEGAL AID CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA, INC.

| !
By v
Maria Parra-Sandoval, Esq.
Atiorney, Consumer Rights Project
Legal Aid Center of Southern Nevada, Inc.
725 E. Charleston Blvd.

Las Vepas, NV 89104
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MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

1050 Park Hs Diirve
Lo Wiegas, Mevala a4

(T02) 3820710 FaX. (02 M1-5816

Nikki and Charlic w the Guardian of the proiccied person by December 11, 2019 by or before
5:00 P.M., until the Count’s decision following the forthcoming February 20, 2020 evidentiary
hearing.

5. The COURT FURTHER FINDS Petitioner has set forth good cause to file a civil
action on behall of the protected person against each of the parties listed within Petitioner’s
moving papers and hereby authorizes the Guardian to initiate a civil lawsuit within the Eighth
Judicial District Court.

IT I8 SO ORDERED.

Dated this 1.9 day of December. 2019,

DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
M
LINDA MARQUIS

Prepared and Submitted by:

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By

gmldinc 'I'nmich!IJ'..E:;q. S

James A, Beckstrom, Esg.

Mevada Bar Mo, 14032

10001 Park Run Drive

Las Vepas, Mevada 89143

Attornevs far Kimberly Jones, Guardian of
Kathfeen June Jones

Approved as (o Form and Content:

MICHAELSON & ASSOCIATES, LTI,

By Qﬁ'&“{ ﬁﬁ'ﬂ(ﬂ(/#‘v’/‘——r

Jokn P, Michelson, Esq.
2200 Pasco Verde Parkway, Ste. 160
Henderson, NV 8952
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